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ABOUT
AP RENTALS

Aol AHEE

We are a leading equipment rental service company in Hong Kong with the capability of providing a wide range
of construction, E&M engineering and event and entertainment equipment, equipment rental-related solutions
and value-added services to our customers. We serve a diverse range of customers including leading
construction and E&M engineering companies and large scale event and entertainment companies. Our rental
equipment principally covers power and energy equipment, high-reach equipment, material handling equipment
and other equipment (include lifting, earth moving, foundation, road and transportation, tunneling, demolition
and small equipment).
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of AP Rentals
Holdings Limited (“AP Rentals” or the “Company”), | hereby present
the audited consolidated annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2018 (the “Year” or “FY2018”).

For FY2018, the Group had a total revenue of approximately
HK$225.3 million, representing an increase of 12.4% as compared to
that of approximately HK$200.5 million for the year ended 31 March
2017 (“FY2017”). The Group’s administrative expenses increased to
approximately HK$40.9 million (FY2017: approximately HK$34.4
million), representing an increase of approximately 18.9% over last
year. The increase was mainly due to increase in salary expenses for
staff, directors’ emoluments and marketing and promotional
expenses. They were aimed at motivating our staff and management
and promoting our equipment rental-related solutions to the market.
The Group’s net profit increased from approximately HK$12.0 million
in FY2017 to approximately HK$21.1 million in FY2018. Please refer
to the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” for
details of the Group’s business performance for FY2018. The
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which summarizes
our effort and performance in promoting and strengthening corporate
social responsibility among the Group during the Year, will be
published separately within three months after the publication of the
annual report of the Company.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FEwE

In 2017, both the global economy and the Hong Kong economy were
improving. Hong Kong has recorded its strongest economic
performance in a decade with a GDP growth of 3.8% and an
unprecedented provisional budget surplus of HK$138 billion for
2017/18 fiscal year of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(“HKSAR”). With improving business sentiment and the work progress
of most of the key projects like the Express Railway, the Kowloon
Terminus and the man-made island of the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao
Bridge (“HZMB”) having been expedited so as to meet the deadlines,
together with the moving out from the initial stage of development of
new key projects, namely, the Third Runway of the Hong Kong
International Airport (the “Third Runway”) and the Tseung Kwan
O-Lam Tin Tunnel (the “TKO-LT Tunnel”), more and more demands
were captured by the Group in terms of machinery trading and
machinery rentals. The Group has also put effort on the private
building sector and event business during the Year. For Macau, the
Group continues to monitor economic conditions in Macau and would
place our focus on public work. For instance, the Macao Special
Administrative Region (“MSAR”) has published the 2018 Policy
Address of MSAR stating that 28,000 public housing units will be
completed in New Urban Zone A in four phases. 7,000 units of phase
one are currently being formulated.

However, for businesses in Macau, the Group experienced a
downward trend in the results of both the trading and rental
businesses in FY2018 due to the completion of some key casino
projects albeit it should have reached its bottom and have shown
some signs of improvement. In addition, the need for public housing
in Hong Kong has not been fully addressed by the HKSAR. These
would inevitably affect the demand from the construction industry in
late 2018 and 2019. Our government and our HKSAR Legislative
Council’s members should have a visionary in using the
unprecedented budget surplus on some long term investments
continuously and effectively, which can create more values and
benefits to the economy of Hong Kong, for instance, public housing.
The Government should also expedite the progress of identifying
available sites for affordable housing development.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
FERE

Looking ahead, we would continue to closely monitor the effects of a
possible trade war between the US and the PRC and further possible
interest hikes in the US and Hong Kong in 2018 and would promptly
take appropriate actions to alleviate their adverse effects towards the
Group. The Group believes that the period from 1 April 2018 and
ending 31 March 2019 (“FY2019”) would be a challenging period for
the Group. Keen competition, especially in rental price, will
continuously be experienced in FY2019 with the completion of key
projects, such as the Express Rail Hong Kong section and the HZMB.
We foresee a drop in rental demands in the 1st and 2nd quarters of
FY2019. However, we expect rental demands to gradually improve in
the remaining quarters as we expect to increase our participation in
those key projects like the Third Runway, the TKO-LT Tunnel, the
Central Kowloon Route and the Kai Tak Sports Park. We will also
devote more effort for exploring more business opportunities from
private developers albeit lower profit margin is expected. In the long
term, Hong Kong Government will continuously invest in infrastructure
in coming years as described in The 2018 Policy Address of HKSAR.
We are optimistic about our future in Hong Kong in longer term of
view.

For the Group’s businesses in Macau, we expect that the market will
become stable with more investments to be made by the Macau
Government in public housing, which was addressed in The 2018
Policy Address of MSAR. For Singapore, our operation has just
started in early September 2017 and the Group will try its best to
develop the business in FY2019.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TERE

In light of the above, the Group will expand its trading business and
rental solution business in Hong Kong and overseas. Rental solution
business is one of our key strengths, which would help us to further
penetrate into the building sector and reduce the price competition.
In order to maintain our competitiveness and profitability, we would
firstly reduce our involvement in businesses with relatively lower profit
margins and then devote our resources in developing those
businesses with higher value. We will continue to maintain our
investment in our rental fleet — disposing aged equipment and
investing in advanced equipment so as to reduce our cost for
maintenance and improve our competitive edge. We would try to
reduce our depreciation cost by disposing some of our aged
equipment. We will also closely monitor our operating costs so as to
enhance our overall competitiveness in the market and thus improve
our profitability.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TERE

To achieve continuous growth in the longer-term, we have made our
first step by expanding into Singapore in 2017. Further investments in
other South East Asia countries lying along the “Belt & Road” could
be considered this year. Furthermore, we will also consider the
possibility of expanding our business into the PRC. All in all, we would
try our best to enhance the strengths of the Group so as to achieve
an annual growth and improvement of our profitability in the coming
few years persistently.

Last but not least, | would like to express my gratitude to the Board
for its brilliant leadership, the entire staff for their untiring efforts during
the Year, as well as the strong support from our shareholders (the
“Shareholders”). | would also like to thank our investors, customers,
suppliers and business partners for their backing. We will continue to
fortify AP Rental’s leadership in the equipment rental industry, realize
sustainable growth and generate satisfactory returns for shareholders.

To reward and thank our Shareholders for their support, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HKO.35 cent per
share. Together with the interim dividend for the Year of HK0.68 cent
per share already paid in January 2018, total payment of dividend for
the Year amounted to HK1.03 cent per share (FY2017: HKO0.56 cent
per share).

By Order of the Board

Mr. Lau Pong Sing

Chairman and Executive Director
26 June 2018
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1 4 AP Rentals Holdings Limited .

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R E AT

GROUP OVERVIEW

The Group is a leading equipment rental service company in Hong
Kong. The principal activities of the Group encompass the provision
of equipment rental-related solutions and value-added services to
customers. The Group owns and maintains a strong rental fleet of
over 1,950 units of equipment as at 31 March 2018 and also rents
equipment from its suppliers, mainly from its shareholder and strategic
partner, Kanamoto Co., Ltd., which is one of the leading construction
equipment rental groups in Japan.

The Group strives to serve our valuable customers better with the
provision of the equipment rental-related solutions and value-added
services. For the year ended 31 March 2018 (“FY2018”), the overall
market sentiment of the construction industry is improving in Hong
Kong. The slowdown of business in Macau of the Group reached its
bottom during the year but has started to show signs of
improvement. The Group has also started transferring some rental
equipment to our wholly-owned subsidiary, AP Equipment Rentals
(Singapore) Pte. Limited (“AP Singapore”), in Singapore, in early 2018.
Through this subsidiary, the Group will be able to expand the
construction equipment trading and rental business into Southeast
Asian countries. In FY2018, the Group has invested approximately
HK$76.4 million to expand its equipment fleet but also disposed of
approximately HK$24.6 million (being the net book value) of aged
equipment. Such rationalization progress will improve the
performance of the Group in long run.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R E AT

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

During FY2018, the business in Hong Kong improved primarily due to
the improvement in business sentiment and that most of the key
projects like the Express Railway, the Kowloon Terminus, have
expedited the work progress so as to meet their respective deadlines.
Other new projects like the Third Runway of the Hong Kong
International Airport (the “Third Runway”) and the Tseung Kwan
O-Lam Tin Tunnel (the “TKO-LT Tunnel”), moved past initial stage of
development with more and more demands being captured by the
Group. The improvement in business sentiment in Hong Kong has
also given a great boost to the machinery trading business of the
Group. The Group had made some improvement in rental business in
Hong Kong. However, for business in Macau, the Group still
experienced a downward trend in the results of both the trading and
rental businesses but has reached its bottom and started regaining
some momentum.

The Group’s revenue for FY2018 increased by approximately 12.4%
to approximately HK$225.3 million as compared to that of
approximately HK$200.5 million for the year ended 31 March 2017
(“FY2017”). The Group’s gross profit increased by approximately
23.3% from approximately HK$46.4 million in FY2017 to
approximately HK$57.2 million in FY2018, with gross profit margin at
approximately 25.4% (FY2017: approximately 23.1%). The Group’s
net profit increased by approximately 75.8% from approximately
HK$12.0 million for FY2017 to approximately HK$21.1 million for
FY2018. The increase in net profit was mainly due to (i) increase in
trading income and (i) gain on disposal of the Group’s equipment.
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1 6 AP Rentals Holdings Limited .

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R E AT

PROSPECTS

The Group expects the Hong Kong market to remain as the Group’s
major market. The “Ten Major Infrastructure Projects”, such as the
Express Rail Hong Kong section and the Hong Kong-Zhuhai-Macao
Bridge (“HZMB”) Hong Kong Boundary Crossing Facilities, shall come
to final stage that would stimulate more demand for construction
equipment. During the year, the Finance Committee of the Legislative
Council in Hong Kong approved the funding application of the
construction of the Central Kowloon Route in October 2017 with
estimated project cost amounting to HK$42.4 billion. The Central
Kowloon Route is a 4.7 km long road in Central Kowloon that will
connect the Yau Ma Tei Interchange in West Kowloon with the road
network to Kai Tak Development and Kowloon Bay in East Kowloon.
Furthermore, a project funding of HK$31.9 billion regarding the Kai
Tak Sports Park project was also approved by the Finance
Committee of the Legislative council in June 2017. The Kai Tak
Sports Park project aims to commence construction in mid 2018 and
completion is estimated to be in 2022. In early 2018, the Group has
already rented our equipment for work sites of the Central Kowloon
Route — Yau Ma Tei East. In addition, the HKSAR government is
scheduled to apply for the fund approval through the Finance
Committee of the Legislative Council for fundamental construction
related projects in amount of approximately HK$170 billion within the
2018-2019 legislative session. Nevertheless, the recent news related
to the quality problems in the Shatin to Central Link project might
affect the speed of approving the fund through the Finance
Committee.

Annual Report 2018
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R E AT

PROSPECTS (Continued)

On the other hand, the Group expected that keen competition,
especially in rental price, will continue in the year ending 31 March
2019 (“FY2019”) with the Express Rail Hong Kong section and the
HZMB projects are approaching the completion stage. The Group
would foresee a drop in rental demands in the first and the second
quarters of FY2019 but would gradually improve in the remaining
quarters as the Group expects to increase its participation in those
key projects, namely Central Kowloon Route, the Kai Tak Sports
Park, the Third Runway and the TKO-LT Tunnel.

In light of the above, the Group believes that the equipment rental
market will continue to expand in the future due to the above
mentioned local major projects, the Third Runway and the TKO-LT
Tunnel. For the Group’s business in Macau, we believe that in near
future, the demand for construction equipment will remain low due to
the completion of major casino projects. Nevertheless, the Group will
continue to monitor any new business opportunities in Macau. The
Group has provided more types of equipment for the Macau’s market
but at the same time withdrawing some types of equipment that have
a lower demand. We believe that in long run, the demand of
construction equipment in Macau will pick up due to the needs to
improve its infrastructure, like drainage. Lastly, we will also keep an
eye on any possible business opportunities in respect of expansion of
the business in Southeast Asia countries lying along the “Belt &
Road”, being stated in the PRC’s “Belt and Road” strategy.

In terms of business operation, we are confident in the prospects of
the rental market in Hong Kong. During FY2018, the Group has
invested approximately HK$76.4 million to expand its equipment fleet.
The Group will continue to invest in and improve its equipment fleet
with higher environmental and quality standard to strive for higher
efficiency, and to comply with increasingly stringent environmental
standards so as to enhance its competitiveness. In addition, the
Group will expand its product range to consolidate its market leading
position. The Group will also expedite its equipment replacement
programme so as to bring down the average age of its equipment
fleet and to increase the overall utilization rate. Certainly, the Group
will further enhance its strengths in providing rental solutions to its key
customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R E AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For FY2018, the Group recorded total revenue of approximately
HK$225.3 million, representing an increase of approximately 12.4%
as compared to the total revenue of approximately HK$200.5 million
for FY2017. The increase in revenue mainly resulted from the increase
in sales of machinery and spare parts.

(i) Rental income of machinery

During FY2018, the Group’s rental income from rental services,
which involved the rental of construction, electrical and
mechanical engineering and event and entertainment equipment
in Hong Kong and Macau, slightly increased by approximately
0.9% to approximately HK$144.4 million for FY2018 (FY2017:
approximately HK$143.1 million). Rental income from rental
services accounted for approximately 64.1% of the Group’s
total revenue for FY2018. The increase in rental income from
Hong Kong was almost offset by the decrease in rental income
from Macau, which was the result of the slowdown of business
in Macau.

(i) Operating service income

The Group offers equipment operating services in Hong Kong
by sending equipment operators to operate the equipment at
the job sites of its customers. For FY2018, revenue from
equipment operating services decreased by approximately
4.9% to approximately HK$25.2 million (FY2017: approximately
HK$26.5 million), and accounted for approximately 11.2% of
the Group’s total revenue for FY2018. The decrease in
operating service income was attributable to the drop in
demand for operators by sizable construction companies in
Hong Kong.

(iii) Other service income

The Group’s other service income, which arise from rental
arrangements including repair, maintenance and technical
support services during the rental period, increased by 10.6%
and amounted to approximately HK$14.6 million for FY2018
(FY2017: approximately HK$13.2 million). The Group’s other
service income accounted for approximately 6.5% of the
Group’s total revenue for FY2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R E AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Revenue (Continued)

(iv) Sales of machinery and spare parts
To complement the Group’s equipment rental solutions, the
Group sources new and used equipment and spare parts from
different suppliers for on-selling to customers. Due to the
increase in demand for construction equipment, the Group’s
revenue from sales of machinery and spare parts increased by
133.5% year-on-year to approximately HK$41.1 million,
(FY2017: approximately HK$17.6 million), which accounted for
approximately 18.2% of the Group’s total revenue for FY2018.

Cost of Sales

The Group’s cost of sales amounted to approximately HK$168.0
million for FY2018 (FY2017: approximately HK$154.1 million),
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 9.0%. Cost of
sales mainly comprised machinery hiring expenses, staff costs for the
Group’s equipment operators, technicians and truck drivers, costs for
machinery and parts for trading and depreciation, which together
accounted for approximately 88.2% of the Group’s total cost of sales
in FY2018 (FY2017: approximately 87.3%).

Among the four major items under cost of sales, the Group recorded
a decrease of approximately 23.2% in machinery hiring expenses
during FY2018, owing to the fact that the market is now looking for
new and advanced machines, therefore the Group have purchased
more new machines instead of hiring machines from its suppliers to
satisfy the market need. Staff costs slightly decreased by
approximately 1.1% over last year, mainly due to the combined effect
of (i) the decrease in demand of operators from customers that was
in line with the slight decrease in operating service income as
described above; and (i) the effect of annual increment in wage and
payment of discretionary bonus. Depreciation increased by
approximately 22.1% year-on-year mainly due to additions of new
and advanced machinery to satisfy the market demand. Costs for
machinery and parts increased by approximately 176.1% following
the increase in sales of our machinery and spare parts.
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20 AP Rentals Holdings Limited .

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R E AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s overall gross profit increased by approximately 23.3%
from approximately HK$46.4 million for FY2017 to approximately
HK$57.2 million for FY2018. The Group’s gross profit margin was
approximately 25.4% for FY2018 (FY2017: approximately 23.1%).
The increase in the gross profit margin was primarily due to the
decrease in the machinery hiring expenses as explained above in
“Cost of Sales” and the increase in sales of machinery and spare
parts.

Other Income

The Group recorded other income amounting to approximately
HK$3.9 million in FY2018 (FY2017: approximately HK$4.8 million),
which represented a decrease of approximately 18.8% from FY2017.
The decrease was mainly due to a decrease in sundry income of
approximately HK$0.7 million in FY2018 as compared to that of
FY2017.

Other Gains and Losses

Other gains and losses amounted to approximately HK$7.2 million in
FY2018 (FY2017: approximately HK$2.0 million), representing an
increase of approximately HK$5.2 million over FY2017.

Due to strong demand for construction equipment in Hong Kong,
including used equipment and the Group’s intention to reduce the
average age of its equipment fleet, the Group disposed of certain
aged equipment and recorded a gain on disposal of plant and motor
vehicles amounting to approximately HK$8.9 million in FY2018
(FY2017: approximately HK$2.3 million). However, the Group also
recorded an allowance for doubtful debts recognised, net, of HK$1.2
million in FY2018 (FY2017: approximately HK$0.2 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R E AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Administrative Expenses

For FY2018, administrative expenses amounted to approximately
HK$40.9 million (FY2017: approximately HK$34.4 million),
representing an increase of approximately 18.9% over last year. The
increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to (i) increase in
salary expenses which amounted to HK$3.5 million (owing to annual
salary increment and payment of discretionary bonus to motivate staff
and salary of AP Singapore); (i) increase in directors’ emoluments
which amounted to HK$1.0 million (mainly owing to discretionary
bonus for two executive directors and provision for their unused
annual leave) and (jii) increase in marketing and promotional expenses
which amounted to HK$2.2 million to further promote our equipment
rental-related solutions to the market. In October 2017, the Group
held an event called the “Time Capsule” for promoting new products
and its advanced equipment rental solutions to its target customers.

Listing Expenses
The Group did not record any listing expenses in FY2018 (FY2017:
approximately HK$1.1 million).

Finance cost

Finance costs comprised interest on the Group’s borrowings and
finance leases, which amounted to approximately HK$1.0 million for
FY2018 (FY2017: approximately HK$2.4 million). The decrease was
due to the decrease in Group’s borrowings during the year.

Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

The Group recorded total comprehensive income of approximately
HK$21.0 million for FY2018 (FY2017: approximately HK$12.0 million),
which represented approximately 9.3% of the revenue (FY2017:
approximately 6.0%), where the increase was mainly due to the
reasons illustrated above.

Capital Expenditure

The Group’s capital expenditures primarily comprised expenditures
on plant and machinery, leasehold improvements and motor vehicles,
amounting to approximately HK$80.3 million for FY2018 (FY2017:
approximately HK$68.3 million). The vast majority of the capital
expenditures were used to fund the expansion of the Group’s owned
rental fleet of machinery, which accounted for approximately 95.1%
of the total capital expenditure for FY2018.

B # B B8 ()

THERX

MR2018F M IFE - ITHFA XA /4098 8
(2017 FEHRFEE - YI344BEBEL) B E
FEBIMA18.9% « TTHAZIEMEBZHR() 5
SRAZIEMIsBEBT (FIRFMFEE R AR
B AP Singapore & T i S BB IELL) © (i E
ESEMN1I.0EBE T (EEHNMENTES
MENBTEA R EARBFROBE) ALK (i)mT
S SHEEAEEEASERERENBRATR
A AR & i R ER 22T EE T - 1
20175108 - AEBERNE A FERIES -
R B EEFHEENERMRELEREN LA

.
e

ieil:c 5
AN B 7 2018 F BA IR 4F [E A0 2 4% 15T LT B
Y (2017 FHREE : H11BEBT) -

L& B AR
MEXABREASEERLRERENFE
2018 FH R FE L A1.08 &L (2017 FEH K
FE:HN24BEHEIT) o AR TR
FEREENETORDFTE

AEEEEWHZEE

AN B 7 2018 F B B AR 2 8115 2 T RS SR 5 AY
21.0B @B (COITEMBFE - H120BEH
JT) v AE MR #99.3% (2017 F BF I - &Y
6.0%) - BIEEZ AN LilIEmA -

BAZH
REBP2018FHMFEEAT T F ZBIEM
ER#EW - HEMERERABNIE 85
80.3EEAEIT (2017 EMHEE - 46838 &%
L) e BAS A ARBNAEEEELHA
WM ARNIER  G2018FEHREEBEART
H#995.1% °

—Z-)\FFER o  SEAEERRERAF

21



22 AP Rentals Holdings Limited .

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R E AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources Review

The Group financed its operations through a combination of cash
flow from operations, borrowings and finance leases. As at 31 March
2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
HK$61.4 million (as at 31 March 2017: approximately HK$45.0
million) that were mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars,
Japanese Yen, United States Dollars, Singapore Dollars and Macau
Pataca, and had borrowings of approximately HK$20.1 million (as at
31 March 2017: approximately HK$33.8 million) that were mainly
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$58.1 million (as at 31 March 2017: approximately
HK$62.8 million), of which approximately HK$17.3 million (as at 31
March 2017: approximately HK$32.0 million) had been drawn down,
and approximately HK$40.8 million (as at 31 March 2017:
approximately HK$30.8 million) were unutilised.

As at 31 March 2018, the gearing ratio of the Group was nil (as at
2017: nil) which was calculated based on the net debt divided by total
equity. Net debt is defined as the sum of the borrowings, bank
overdraft and obligations under finance leases, minus the cash and
cash equivalents.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Certain transactions of the Group are denominated in currencies
which are different from the functional currency of the Company,
namely, Hong Kong Dollars, and therefore the Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk. Payments made by the Group for the
settlement of its purchases from suppliers are generally denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars, Japanese Yen and Singapore Dollars.
Payments received by the Group from its customers are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Macau Pataca.

The Group does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.

However, the Group will continue to monitor closely its exposure to
currency movement and take proactive measures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R E AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
(as at 31 March 2017: Nil).

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,
Associated Companies and Joint Ventures

There were no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during FY2018 (FY2017: Nil).

Significant Investment
As at 31 March 2018, the Group held no significant investment.

Capital Commitments and Future Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has capital commitments of
approximately HK$1.5 million (as at 31 March 2017: approximately
HK$12.0 million), to acquire plant and equipment for the Group. The
source of funding for this capital commitment would be financed by
the Group’s internal resources.

Pledge of Assets

Deposit placed for a life insurance policy of approximately HK$2.7
million as at 31 March 2018 (as at 31 March 2017: approximately
HK$2.6 million), property, plant and machinery of approximately
HK$25.0 million as at 31 March 2018 (as at 31 March 2017:
approximately HK$33.0 million), and bank deposit of approximately
HK$0.4 million (as at 31 March 2017: approximately HK$2.4 million)
have been pledged to secure the Group’s borrowings of
approximately HK$18.0 million (as at 31 March 2017: approximately
HK$33.8 million).
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24 AP Rentals Holdings Limited .

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E R E AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Human Resources and Employees’ Remuneration

As at 31 March 2018, the Group had 132 employees (as at 31 March
2017: 170 employees), of which 124 employees are in Hong Kong (as
at 31 March 2017: 162 employees), 5 employees are in Macau (as at
31 March 2017: 6 employees) and 3 employees are in Singapore (as
at 31 March 2017: 2 employees). The decrease in number of
employees was mainly due to the lower number of operators hired in
Hong Kong as a result of the decrease in demand of the market.
Please refer to the header “Revenue”, Sub-header “Operating service
income” under this section for further details. Employees’
remuneration packages are determined with reference to the market
information and individual performance and will be reviewed on a
regular basis. The remuneration policy will be reviewed by the Board
from time to time. In addition to basic remuneration, the Group also
provides medical insurance, make contributions to provident funds
and provides other benefits to the employees. The total staff cost,
including remuneration, compensation for annual leave, other benefits
and contributions to retirement schemes for the directors of the
Company and other staff of the Group for FY2018 amounted to
approximately HK$57.0 million (FY2017: approximately HK$52.5
million). The increase in staff cost was mainly due to increase in salary
expenses (owing to annual salary increment and payment of
discretionary bonus to motivate staff) and directors’ emoluments
(owing to discretionary bonus for two executive directors and
provision for their unused annual leave).

The Group’s technical staff attend seminars jointly conducted by
manufacturers and the Group to acquire product knowledge to
ensure they are equipped with the necessary skills and knowledge to
perform their duties. Such seminars include training regarding the
equipment structures, operational features, operator safety training
and equipment repair. In addition to the training jointly conducted by
manufacturers and the Group, the Group’s technical staff also attend
external training courses and obtained relevant certificates.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Results

Revenue
Leasing income of
machinery

Sales of machinery and

parts

Operating service income
Other service income

AFMBEE

For the year ended 31 March
BZE=HA=+—HLEE

Gross profit

Other income

Other gains and (losses)

Profit before taxation
Income tax expense

Profit and total
comprehensive
income for the year

Per share data
Earnings per share —
basic (HK cents)

Financial ratios
Gross profit margin
Net profit margin
Return on total assets
Return on equity
Current ratio

Assets and Liabilities
Total assets

Total liabilities

Total Equity

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
2018 4 2017 6 2016 F 2015 2014 4
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
FHE  TEx  TEx  TEx TR
W zs
H R A U A
i 143,121 171,777 161,660 143,657
T N D EE
41,081 17,612 36,957 38,530 46,444
Tt N 25,153 26,512 20,329 16,926 19,295
H AR A 14,644 13,246 10,078 11,109 8,553
225,261 200,491 239,341 008205 217,949
£ 57,246 46,391 76,828 69,321 61,693
A 3,863 4,768 2,552 2,065 1,152
R (B18) 7,153 1,056 494 2625 3172
BB AT 26,207 15,283 29,030 51,472 47 541
RS (5,216) (3,312) (8,107) (8,547) (7,416)
REERF K
2 HEW B
21,081 11,971 20,923 42,925 40,125
BRER
FREF —
A (BAL) 2.44 1.41 2.04 6.02 5.63
gL =
EF|% 25.4% 23.1% 32.1% 30.4% 28.3%
PR 9.4% 6.0% 8.7% 18.8% 18.4%
8 7 [0 4 o 6.3% 3.6% 7.5% 18.1% 22.3%
TR nEE 8.6% 51% 17.4% 38.8% 45.8%
L & 222 1.77 0.77 0.89 0.99
BENAE
mEE S 334856 279,071 237,471 180,318
BaE o (101,424) (158579  (126,902) (92,674)
g Cbih 233432 120,492 110,569 87,644
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
IFHHHE

REVENUE (HK$ Million) GROSS PROFIT (HK$ Million)
B (mesT) EMEEBT)
217.95 228.23 239.34 200.49 225.26
250.00 80.00 76.83
. ‘ 20,00 69.32
200.00
19. . 60.00 ©61:69
46.44 57.25
150.00 _ : 50.00 26,39
40.00
100.00 - 30.00
143.66
20.00
50.00
10.00
0.00 0.00
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
ZTNF ZF-hF A% ZFEF SE R ZTMEF ZF-RF ZTAF ZFEF S5 0F
. Leasing income of machinery . Sales of machinery and parts
ER TR AR A RIS
|| Operating service income B Other service income
1 BRI E AR A
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS EARNINGS PER SHARE (HK cents)
(HK$ Million) |ERAEF G5
BB AEERR (5850
50.00 8.00
42.93 42.19* 7.00
40.00 4013
6.00 5.63 6.02 5.92*
30.00 5.00
4.00
21.08
20.00 3.00
2.44
13.08* 2.00
10.00 1.54*
1.00 ’
0.00 0.00
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—E-NF ZT-HF CZT-RF ZT—+tF =ZT-N\F —T-mFE ZT-RF ZTARF ZT—+F =ZT-NEF

Underlying profit and total comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2017 and year ended 31 March 2016 (“FY2016”)
represent reported profit attributable to owners of the Company before deducting one-off listing expenses of approximately
HK$1.11 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 (FY2016: approximately HK$21.27 million).
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
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Underlying profit and total comprehensive income for the FY2017 and FY2016 represent reported profit attributable to owners of
the Company before deducting one-off listing expenses of approximately HK$1.11 million for FY2017 (FY2016: approximately
HK$21.27 million).
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The Directors submit herewith their annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2018.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged in the provision of equipment rental-
related solutions and value-added services to customers. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note
34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of change in equity on page 88.

As at 31 March 2018, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$115.4 million (as at 2017: HK$102.7
million).

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2018
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to
156 of this annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK0.35
cent per share (FY2017: HK0.28 cent per share). An interim dividend
for the Year of HKO.68 cent per share was paid in January 2018.

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion of the Group’s future business development are set out in
the Chairman’s Statement and the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section on pages 8 to 13 and on pages 14 to 24 of this
annual report respectively.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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The equipment rental industry is cyclical in general and its revenues
are tied to general economic conditions and to conditions in the
construction and electrical and mechanical engineering (“E&M” or
“E&M engineering”) industry in particular. Our products and services
are used primarily in construction projects which is cyclical and
sensitive to changes in general economic conditions. Weakness in
our end-markets, such as a decline in construction and E&M
engineering activity, may decrease the demand for the Group’s
equipment or the rental rates or prices that the Group can charge.
Factors that may cause weakness in our end-markets include:

(i) weakness in economic growth in Hong Kong and in Macau or
the onset of a new recession that might be caused by the
possible trade war between the US and the PRC;

(i) slowdown in the expansion of the construction industry in Hong
Kong and Macau where we operate;

@iy increase in the cost of construction materials and labour costs;
(iv)  increases in interest rates; and
(v)  adverse changes in the government infrastructure spending.

Further description of possible capital risks and financial risks facing
the Group are set out in note 27 and note 28 to the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
and the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis —
Foreign Exchange Risk” on page 22 of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five Year
Financial Summary and the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis — Financial Review” on pages 25 to 27 and on pages
18 to 24 of this annual report respectively. Particulars of important
events affecting the Company that have occurred since the end of the
financial year ended 31 March 2018, if any, can also be found in this
section and the above sections of this annual report and notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
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The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment. In terms of environmental friendliness, we have obtained
the Quality Powered Mechanical Equipment (“QPME”) identification
for most of our rental equipment to which the QPME system is
applicable, and we have filed application for all our equipment which
are subject to the Air Pollution Control (Non-road Mobile Machinery)
(Emission) Regulation (Chapter 311Z of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“NRMM” Regulation), and have obtained the NRMM label for most of
such equipment.

Further details on (i) the Group’s environmental policies and
performance; and (ii) the Group’s compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group will be set out
in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.

The Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) will be published within three months after the
publication of the annual report of the Company.

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers are
keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed to
establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing cooperation
with its business partners. The Company provides a fair and safe
workplace, promotes diversity to our staff, provides competitive
remuneration and benefits and career development opportunities
based on their merits and performance. The Group also puts ongoing
efforts to provide adequate trainings and development resources to
the employees so that they can keep abreast of the latest
development of the market and the industry and, at the same time,
improve their performance and self-fulfillment in their positions.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
(Continued)

The Group provides a wide range of construction, E&M engineering
and event and entertainment equipment, equipment rental-related
solutions and value-added services to customers. The Group
maintains good working relationships between the Group and the
customers. The Group enhances the relationship by continuous
interaction with customers to gain insight on the changing market
demand for different products so that the Group can respond
proactively.

The Group maintains sound business relationship with its suppliers
and service providers, including our strategic partner and our
shareholder, Kanamoto Co., Limited, and our key suppliers. In order
to have better and close monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the
Group’s management conducts performance review regularly
targeting the Group’s major suppliers and service providers, and
communicates with them for rectification and improvements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last 5 financial years are set out on page 25 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2018, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company.
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There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (“Articles”) or the laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$130,000 (FY2017: HK$50,000).

To attract and retain the most suitable personnel for development of
the Group, the Group has adopted the share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) on 17 March 2016. Share options may be
granted to eligible employees of the Group as a long-term incentive.
From the date of the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to
31 March 2018, no share option has been granted or agreed to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme.

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
(@) The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme
and is established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that Eligible Participants (as defined below)
had made or may make to the Group.

(b) The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible
Participants with an opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the Company with the view to achieving the
following principal objectives:

(i) motivate the Eligible Participants to optimise their
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the
Group; and

(i)  attract and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing
business relationship with the Eligible Participants
whose contributions are, will or expected to be
beneficial to the Group.

(c) For the purpose of the Share Option Scheme, “Eligible
Participant” means any person who satisfies the eligibility
criteria in paragraph 2 below.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Who may join and basis for determining eligibility

(@)

The Board may at its discretion grant options to: (i) any
director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest
or a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or (i) the
trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which
include any director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or
contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or (i) a company
beneficially owned by any director, employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser
of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

In order for a person to satisfy the Board that he/she/it is
qualified to be (or, where applicable, continues to qualify
to be) an Eligible Participant, such person shall provide all
such information as the Board may request for the
purpose of assessing his/her/its eligibility (or continuing
eligibility).

Each grant of options to a connected person (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company, or any of his associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules), must be approved in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Should the Board resolve that a grantee fails/has failed or
otherwise is/has been unable to meet the continuing
eligibility criteria under the Share Option Scheme, the
Company would (subject to any relevant laws and
regulations) be entitled to deem any outstanding option or
part thereof, granted to such grantee and to the extent
not already exercised, as lapsed, subject to certain
requirements (the details of which are set out in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV of
the prospectus of the Company dated 24 March 2016
(the “Prospectus”)).
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Maximum number of shares of the Company

(“Shares”) available for issue

(@ The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. No options may be granted under any schemes of
the Company (including the Share Option Scheme) if this
will result in the said 30% limit being exceeded.

(b)  The maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes involving the issue or
grant of options or similar rights over Shares or other
securities by the Company shall not, in aggregate, exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 8
April 2016 (the “Listing Date”), and such 10% limit
represents 86,400,000 Shares. 86,400,000 Shares
represents 10% of the total Shares in issue as at the date
of this annual report.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under
the Share Option Scheme

No option may be granted to any Eligible Participant which, if
exercised in full, would result in the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options already
granted or to be granted to such Eligible Participant under the
Share Option Scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding share options) in the twelve-month period up to
and including the date of such new grant exceeding 1% in
aggregate of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
date of such grant. Any grant of further share options above
this limit shall be subject to certain requirements provided under
the Listing Rules.

Time of exercise of option

(@) Subject to certain restrictions contained in the Share
Option Scheme, an option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and the terms of grant thereof at any time during the
applicable option period, which is not more than ten years
from the date of grant of option.

Annual Report 2018
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Time of exercise of option (Continued)
(b)  There is no general requirement on the minimum period
for which an option must be held or the performance
targets which must be achieved before an option can be
exercised under the terms of the Share Option Scheme.
However, at the time of granting any option, the Board
may, on a case by case basis, make such grant subject
to such conditions, restrictions or limitations including
(without limitation) those in relation to the minimum period
of the options to be held and/or the performance targets
to be achieved as the Board may determine in its absolute
discretion.

Consideration for share options and the exercise
price

On and subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
Board shall be entitled at any time on a business day within ten
years commencing on the effective date of the Share Option
Scheme to offer the grant of an option to any Eligible Participant
as the Board may in its absolute discretion select in accordance
with the eligibility criteria set out in the Share Option Scheme.
An offer shall be accepted when the Company receives the duly
signed offer letter together with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1.00 (or such other sum in any currency as the Board may
determine).

The exercise price for any Share under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board and notified
to each grantee and shall be not less than the highest of () the
closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option,
which must be a business day, (i) an amount equivalent to the
average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant option
and (ii) the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant. The
exercise price shall also be subject to certain adjustments (the
details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in Appendix IV of the Prospectus).
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7. Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
Options may be granted to Eligible Participants under the Share
Option Scheme during the period of ten years commencing on
the effective date of the Share Option Scheme. The remaining
life of the Share Option Scheme is approximately seven years
and eight months as at the date of this annual report.

For further details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” on pages IV-12 to IV-22 in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus.

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the aggregate amount of revenue
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers are as follows:

5.6%
21.8%

The largest customer
The five largest customers in aggregate

The percentages of total purchases (defined as the sum of (i) the
Group’s total cost of sales less staff cost and depreciation and (i)
purchases of the Group’s owned rental equipment) for the year
attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

26.5%
67.7%

The largest supplier
The five largest suppliers in aggregate

At no time during the year did the Directors, their close associates or
any shareholders of the Company, which to the best knowledge of
the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital, have any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers
and suppliers except that Kanamoto (HK) Co., Ltd., is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Kanamoto Co., Limited, a company holding
approximately 7.5% of the shares of the Company as at the date of
this annual report. Kanamoto (HK) Co., Ltd. contributed to the supply
of 24.5% of total purchases of the Group and is one of the Group’s

five largest suppliers.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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The Directors during the year under review and up to the date of this
annual report were:

Executive Directors
Lau Pong Sing (Chairman)
Chan Kit Mui, Lina

Non-executive Directors
Kitagawa Ken (ceased to be a director on 20 June 2017)
Lu Tao (appointed on 20 June 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors
Ho Chung Tai, Raymond

Siu Chak Yu

Li Ping Chi

Pursuant to Article 83 of the Articles, the Board shall have the power
from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as addition to the Board. Any director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the first general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any director appointed
by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years.

By virtue of Article 84 of the Articles, 2 Directors, namely, Li Ping Chi
and Ho Chung Tai, Raymond will retire from office at the 2018 annual
general meeting of the Company (“2018 AGM”) and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 65 to 77 of this annual report.

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2018, the interests or short positions of the Directors
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFQ”)), which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which the directors and chief executive were deemed or
taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the
register therein, or were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) are as follows:

Name of Director Nature of Interest

EEHA

EEME

Mr. Lau Pong Sing (Note 1, 2)
BIFBp e A (BiFRE1 -~ 2) R EE R
Interest of spouse
BB

Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina (Note 3, 4)
BRI+ (713~ 4) R EE RS
Interest of spouse

[

The Company was directly owned as to 42.08% by New Club
House International Holdings Limited (“New Club House”). By virtue
of his 100% shareholding in New Club House, Mr. Lau Pong Sing
(“Mr. Lau”) is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares
held by New Club House.

Note 1:

Note 2:  Mr. Lau is the spouse of Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina (“Ms. Chan”). Under
the SFO, Mr. Lau is deemed to be interested in the same number of
Shares in which Ms. Chan is interested.

Note 38:  The Company was directly owned as to 32.92% by Great Club
House Holdings Limited (“Great Club House”). By virtue of her 100%
shareholding in Great Club House, Ms. Chan is deemed to be
interested in the same number of Shares held by Great Club House.

Note 4:  Ms. Chan is the spouse of Mr. Lau. Under the SFO, Ms. Chan is
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr.

Lau is interested.
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Interest in a controlled corporation

Interest in a controlled corporation

EERKG - HRKG R REEPRE
ZRIRE

R2018F3A31H  EENARR REA(THE
BEB(EEREFEHFRBERI(TESRBER
Bl 1) EBXVES) BB - MEEARR () REEEFES
BIEES LG EPIEXVEET RSN B ANE
ARBRBRIMERIAR (BEREESF R
RERIZEBRCRANEFRESTRERITR
AEBEBNERZIAR) AREFHFRIBEK
151l 55 352 15 8 20 B A 5% {6 P it 2 50 A MO AR 25 3R
B R EMREIME10FE LB ITAZES
EITESHFRZMEESTA([FESFR]) BRE AR
AR R RFTHESSA BT

Approximate
Percentage of
Total Issued
Shares (%)
HEBRTROBH
BN E 2 L (%)

Number of
Shares

R E

363,528,000 (L) 42.08%

284,471,352 (L) 32.92%

284,471,352 (L) 32.92%

363,528,000 (L) 42.08%

BEE1: AN 2 &) fiNew Club House International
Holdings Limited ([ New Club House ]) B #
7 42.08% #ess o BIFSRKSEAE(TRI5EE]D)
KA New Club House 9 100% % # if 1%
8 B New Club House AT 18R 21 B A% 1D
YRR R o

WEE2 : Bl RMRRERZ T ([FREL]) MR-
BIEEH REBAEGD - BIEEWRBRER
ZAHHEMAERE B KPR R o
353 : A & & fGreat Club House Holdings
Limited ([ Great Club Housel) & & # A&
32.92% & % © R 2z + [A # A Great Club
House #) 100% X # i 15 13 /272 Great Club
House Fr#siE R £ B iR P A -

R+ AREENEE - BIEESFRAE
BB BRATHIR RN B R EHEA R
HEREE RO P AR -

MEE4 -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND

DEBENTURES (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Directors, as
at 31 March 2018, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2018, so far as the directors are aware, the following
persons (other than the directors or chief executive of the Company),
were directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the shares or
short positions in the shares and the underlying shares of the
Company, which are required to be disclosed under provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which will be required,
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, were as follows:

Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest

EEtE

BRERER

New Club House' (Note 1) Beneficial interest

New Club House' (FfsE 1) fal o
Great Club House? (Note 2) Beneficial interest
Great Club House? (FffzE2) ey
Kanamoto Japan?® (Note 3) Beneficial interest
SARBARE(H7E3) EnEn

EFEREHR ARBRORE#EERE
BRIEEE)

bR EXFTHBEEINRIRE RS - 201843
A318 ARAEFHEETHAERERAEAR
RIS E B AE (T & R EFH KB EAIEXVEE)
Bkt - RN SKEERTR  BHERBEESR
HEEHIEXVEIE 7 e m SpAME AN A7) KL
R m AR (BIEREESF R HAEEN6
REBREIRABEANERIAR) - SRIEFE
% IS (610156 352 16 7B & SO M & I Fr il & 7o it
SARBIEE T AR RS R 5] R B 32 P ) R 2 sk

o o

FRERRERMRERKRGPHERR
9

201843 A31H  BEEMMA - LTALCK
RAIEFXTEEITERABRIN B EERAR
NAS5% A LR R P #E RN AR FR
19 RABBARR D R HE B IR IR B H R B E R B FE XV
HME2 R 3D MESAEL BB LR IEEF R
B &P % 336 7R 50 A Z IR AT it & 5L it B9 4 8 40
T~

Approximate
Percentage of

Total Number the Issued
of Shares Held Share Capital
HEBTRA

PR IR 43 48 8 BRNBEDL
363,528,000 (L) 42.08%
284,471,352 (L) 32.92%
64,800,648 (L) 7.5%

T N\FFR -

CHARERRERAT 39
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (Continued)

Note 1: It is directly wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Pong Sing. It is a controlling
shareholder holding 363,528,000 shares of the Company.

Note 2: It is directly wholly-owned by Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina. It is a
controlling shareholder holding 284,471,352 shares of the
Company.

Note 3: It is a shareholder holding 64,800,648 shares of the Company.

L : Long position

! “New Club House”: New Club House International Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability on
8 June 2015.

2 “Great Club House”: Great Club House Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability on 8 June
2015.

3 “Kanamoto Japan”: Kanamoto Co., Ltd.* (k=X 24717 F ), a company
incorporated in Japan on 24 September 1937.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2018, the Directors were
not aware of any other corporation or individual (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had an interest or
a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Article 164 of the Articles of Association of the Company provides,
among other things, that the Directors and other officers shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses as a result of any act or failure to act in
carrying out his/her functions. The Company has arranged
appropriate Directors and officers liability insurance.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in this annual report, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or
subsisted during the year ended 31 March 2018.

Annual Report 2018
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Other than the section headed “Share Option Scheme” disclosed
above, at no time during the year, the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangements which
would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
subsidiaries. Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 was granted any
right to subscribe for the shares or debentures of the Company or its
subsidiaries or had exercised any such right during the year.

As at 31 March 2018, the Directors were not aware of any business
or interest of the Directors and their respective associates that had
competed or might compete with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interests which any such person had or might have
with the Group except those disclosed under the section headed
“Non-Competition Undertaking by Controlling Shareholders”.

As at 31 March 2018, the Group employed a total of 132 employees.
For the year ended 31 March 2018, the staff costs of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$57.0 million.

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Board on the basis of their performance, qualifications,
competence and job nature.

The remuneration of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparing with market conditions. The Company has adopted a
share option scheme as an incentive to eligible employees.
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The Group has established a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for its Hong Kong employees. The assets of the
scheme are held separately in funds which are under the control of
independent trustees. The retirement benefit scheme contributions
charged to profit or loss represent contributions paid or payable by
the Group to the scheme at 5% of each of the employees’ monthly
relevant income capped at HK$30,000 per month.

The total costs charged to profit or loss for the year of approximately
HK$2,148,000 (FY2017: approximately HK$1,860,000), comprised
approximately HK$72,000 and HK$2,076,000 (FY2017: approximately
HK$72,000 and HK$1,788,000) in directors’ emoluments and other
staff costs respectively, and represented contributions paid or payable
to the schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting
period. At the end of the reporting period, there were no forfeited
contributions available to reduce future obligations.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual
report, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital is
held by the public as required under the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which any Director or Controlling Shareholders of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31
March 2018 or during the year.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM IPO

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange since 8 April 2016. The net proceeds from IPO of
the Company (after deducting underwriting fee and relevant
expenses) were approximately HK$81.8 million. The following table
sets forth the status of the use of proceeds from IPO as at 31 March
2018:

BEROMBEMSRARHEAE
RAFRD B 2016494 A8 AR ER T ER £
e RARIBERARBEMEREFERE
HEREBMSE)NASISEEB L TRH
77201843 A31 AWM B X AR & &S HIE
FRBR

Utilised up to  Unutilised as at

Net proceeds

from IPO 31 March 2018 31 March 2018
EZE201845 R2018 4%
BHXAAHBE 3H31 AL 3H31H
FRSRIEFE 2EARE RENARIE
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHIT FHIT
Investment in rental equipment AR EIRE 58,242 58,242 -
Development of GPS equipment BEDINEETAERE
monitoring system ERRS 8,507 - 8,507
Investment in transportation Bl RERE
equipment 5,808 4,039 1,769
Improvement of facility MAEBEREBRS
for maintenance of the R E RN
Group’s equipment 3,517 373 3,144
General working capital —fREEER 5,726 5,726 -
81,800 68,380 13,420

The unutilised amounts of the net proceeds from IPO will be applied
in such manner consistent with that mentioned in the Prospectus.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Subsequent Acquisition of Machinery

On 23 May 2018, AP Rentals Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement with a
company incorporated in Singapore which supplies engine-driven
generators, welders and air compressors, for the acquisition of 36
units of silent type diesel generators at the total consideration of
JPY246,305,455 (equivalent to approximately HK$17,495,076) to
enable the Group to expand its equipment fleet to satisfy the
increasing demand for equipment with higher emission standards
following the implementation of the Air Pollution Control (Non-road
Mobile Machinery) (Emission) Regulation (Chapter 311Z of the laws of
Hong Kong). Details of the transaction is set out in the announcement
published by the Company dated 23 May 2018.

BRARBEMSRBFENRSAFIRBIZR
ReERR AT A -

HEHEER
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MR2018F5A23H » AR AINEEMN B A7 2
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A summary of the significant related party transactions which were
conducted in the ordinary course of business are set out in Note 32
to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the related party transactions set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements constituted connected
transactions/continuing connected transactions, or they constituted
connected transactions/continuing connected transactions but were
exempted from all disclosure and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

Set out below are details of the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of the Company (which are subject to the reporting and
annual review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules)
for the year ended 31 March 2018.

1. Asoem Framework Agreement

The Company entered into a framework agreement with Asoem
(Int’l) Investment Company Limited (“Asoem”) on 17 March
2016 (the “Asoem Framework Agreement”) governing the
supply of (i) spare parts for the construction equipment of the
Group; (i) management service for the warehouse of the Group
which stores the spare parts belonging to the Group; and (iii)
certain construction equipment, from Asoem to the Group from
time to time. The term of the Asoem Framework Agreement is
from the Listing Date to 31 March 2018. For details of this
continuing connected transaction, please refer to the section
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” of the
Prospectus.

As Asoem is owned as to 100% by Lau Pong Man, the brother
of Lau Pong Sing and the brother-in-law of Chan Kit Mui Lina,
each being a director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company, Asoem is therefore their associate and a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount of the fee payable to Asoem, or
companies controlled by it, by the Group for the year ended 31
March 2018 was HK$7,000,000 and the actual amount of fee
payable by the Group for the year ended 31 March 2018 was
approximately HK$847,000, not exceeding the annual cap
amount.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Asoem Framework Agreement (Continued)

The Asoem Framework Agreement is automatically renewed for
a period of 3 years from 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2021
pursuant to the terms of the Asoem Framework Agreement.

The expected amount of the fee payable to Asoem, or
companies controlled by it, by the Group for each of the 3 years
ending 31 March 2021 shall not exceed HK$3,000,000.
Pursuant to Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules, the transactions
contemplated under the renewed Asoem Framework
Agreement constitute fully exempt continuing connected
transactions.

A-One Pong Framework Agreement

The Company entered into a framework agreement with A-One
Pong Construction Equipment Limited (“A-One Pong”) on 17
March 2016 (the “A-One Pong Framework Agreement”)
governing the sales and rental of construction equipment and
vehicles by A-One Pong to the Group from time to time. The
term of the agreement granted under the A-One Pong
Framework Agreement is valid from the Listing Date to 31
March 2018. For details of this continuing connected
transaction, please refer to the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” of the Prospectus.

As A-One Pong is wholly-owned by Lau Pong Ming, brother of
Lau Pong Sing and the brother-in-law of Chan Kit Mui Lina,
each being a director and a controlling shareholder of the
Company, A-One Pong is therefore their associate and a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The annual cap amount for the transactions under the A-One
Pong Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 March 2018
was HK$8,800,000 and the actual amount of consideration for
the transactions for the year ended 31 March 2018 was
approximately HK$2,009,000, not exceeding the annual cap
amount.

Asoem ERIHER (&)

1R IR Asoem 1E 22 175 3% AU 163X + Asoem HE 28
MEE BB ES - B2018F4A1HESR
202143 A31 AL AEI=F -
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M A E 14A.76 15 - L& EHE B Asoem HEZE
WHFEE NRETHRZERNEZERRH
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2. A-One Pong Framework Agreement (Continued)
The A-One Pong Framework Agreement is automatically
renewed for a period of 3 years from 1 April 2018 to 31 March
2021 pursuant to the terms of the A-One Pong Framework
Agreement.

The expected amount payable by the Group to A-One Pong in
respect of the transactions contemplated under the A-One
Pong Framework Agreement for each of the 3 years ending 31
March 2021 shall not exceed HK$3,000,000. Pursuant to Rule
14A.76 of the Listing Rules, the transactions contemplated
under the renewed A-One Pong Framework Agreement
constitute fully exempt continuing connected transactions.

Pursuant to Rule 14A. 55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that the transactions have been
entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms; and (iii) according to the
agreement governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740, Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions set out on pages 44 to 46 of this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.
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The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK0.35
cent per share for the year ended 31 March 2018. In order to be
eligible to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on 28 August 2018. The book close period for the final dividend will
be from 29 August 2018 to 31 August 2018 (both days inclusive). The
final dividend will be paid to the Shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company as at the close of
business on 31 August 2018, if the proposal is approved by the
Shareholders at the 2018 AGM of the Company. It is expected that
the final dividend will be paid on or around 11 September 2018.

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM
of the Company to be held on 23 August 2018, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 20 August 2018 to 23
August 2018 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the 2018 AGM, all transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on 17 August 2018.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2018 have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the 2018
AGM.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Jlin

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS OF HBITESFHFEANRERARRRSE
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to XA T A FBAET H i B A D T A MM T
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s A% H &5 & =R s & ©

securities.

By order of the Board AEEEm

LAU Pong Sing BIFEL

Chairman and Executive Director FTERANTEF

Hong Kong, 26 June 2018 A% 20186 A26 H

48 AP Rentals Holdings Limited o Annual Report 2018
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2018.

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high
standard of corporate governance and leading the Group to attain
better results and improve its corporate image with effective corporate
governance procedures.

In 2016, the Company has engaged an international consulting firm
(the “Consultant”) to oversee and recommend appropriate actions so
as to ensure that the Company is complying with the requirement of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) in relation to corporate
governance before and after listing. During the year under review, the
Company improved its corporate governance practices continuously
with reference to the Consultant’s recommendations. Moreover, the
Company has adopted its corporate governance practices which are
reproduced from the code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company has complied
with the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (“CG Code”), save and except
for the deviation from code provision A.2.1.

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The roles of chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company are both performed by Mr. Lau
Pong Sing. The Board believes that vesting of the roles of both
chairman and chief executive officer in the same individual provides
the Company with strong and consistent leadership, efficient usage of
resources and allows for effective planning, formulation and
implementation of the Company’s business strategies which will
enable the Company to sustain the development of its business
efficiently.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted The Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the directors of the Company.
The Company has made specific enquiries to all directors of the
Company regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code.

All the directors of the Company confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the year ended 31 March 2018.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership and guidance to the Group’s activities
and is responsible for formulating the overall strategies and
determining the direction of future development of the Group. The
Board oversees the Group’s operation and financial performance.
The Board has delegated its powers to the management for the
Group’s daily management and operations.

BOARD COMPOSITION

Currently, the Board comprises two executive Directors, one non-
executive Director and three independent non-executive Directors.
Since there are three independent non-executive Directors and at
least one of the independent non-executive Directors possesses the
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise, the Company has complied with the
requirements under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. Furthermore, the
Company has complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The
number of independent non-executive Directors represents more
than one-third of the Board. As such, there exists a strong
independent element in the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgement. The Board comprises the following
Directors:
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Mr. Lau Pong Sing (21385 ) (Chairman; Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina (2 1§) (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Lu Tao (B&)

Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond ({a]$&g)
Mr. Siu Chak Yu (FHEF)
Mr. Li Ping Chi (Z/i7)

The Chairman and executive Director, Mr. Lau Pong Sing is the
spouse of Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina, an executive Director. The
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lau Pong Sing and Ms. Chan Kit Mui,
Lina, are interested in the shares of the Company through their
interest in New Club House International Holdings Limited (“New
Club House”) and Great Club House Holdings Limited (“Great Club
House”) respectively (for details, please refer to the Prospectus).
Instances of actual or potential conflict have been identified and
minimised. Please refer to the “Directors and Senior Management”,
“Directors’ Report — Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” and “Directors’ Report
— Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages 65 to 77, pages 38
to 40 and pages 44 to 46 in this annual report respectively for more
details. Save as disclosed above, the Directors have no other
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
one another as at the date of this annual report.

Non-executive Director and Independent non-executive
Directors

Coming from diverse business and professional backgrounds, the
non-executive Director and the independent non-executive Directors
of the Company have shared their valuable experiences to the Board
for promoting the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The non-executive Director and all of the independent non-executive
Directors are appointed under an initial term of three years and are
also subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”).
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
Directors, a written confirmation of his independence to the Company
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be independent
in accordance with the relevant guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director was provided with the necessary
induction, training and information to ensure that he/she has proper
understanding of his/her responsibilities under the Listing Rules and
the applicable laws, rules and regulations prior to his/her
appointment. The Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development courses and seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company will
continue to arrange and fund suitable training and regular seminars to
provide Directors with updates on the latest developments and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, all Directors have attended
training in connection with their responsibilities as a director of the
Company, and the attendance of each Directors is set out in the table
below:
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Name of Director Attendance

EEHE HE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES

Mr. Lau Pong Sing (ZF8A%) 2UFK kA 4
(Chairman; Chief Executive Officer) (F/E 7T AEE)

Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina (FR21) PRIRIG LI v/
(Chief Operating Officer) (BBHE)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FHITES

Mr. Lu Tao (&)%) B v

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BYHHITES

Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond ({a]$£%g) fAsEZRIE = TI2AM v

Mr. Siu Chak Yu (F27F) EEFRE v

Mr. Li Ping Chi (/A E) FRELE v
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Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company on 17 March 2016 for an initial term of three years
commencing from 8 April 2016, and may be terminated pursuant to
the respective terms of the service agreements. Mr. Kitagawa Ken
ceased to be a non-executive Director of the Company on 20 June
2017. Mr. Lu Tao, a non-executive Director, entered into a letter of
appointment dated 20 June 2017 with the Company for an initial term
of three years, and may be terminated pursuant to the terms of the
letter of appointment. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment on 17 March 2016
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
8 April 2016, and may be terminated pursuant to the respective terms
of the letters of appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of the Directors are governed by the Articles. Article 83(3) of the
Articles provides that any director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office only until the first general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and shall
then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles, at each AGM, one-third
of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to, but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at AGM at least once every three years. A
retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. The Directors to retire
by rotation shall include (so far as necessary to ascertain the number
of directors to retire by rotation) any Director who wishes to retire and
not to offer himself for re-election. Any further Directors so to retire
shall be those of the other Directors subject to retirement by rotation
who have been longest in office since their last re-election or
appointment and so that as between persons who became or were
last re- elected Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless
they otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.
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At the last annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”) held on
Friday, 25 August 2017, Lau Pong Sing, Chan Kit Mui, Lina retired
and Lu Tao held office only until the last AGM. All of them have been
re-elected as Directors of the Company at the last AGM.

Pursuant to the CG Code provision A.1.1, the Board should meet
regularly and board meetings should be held at least four times a
year. The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategies as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group. Directors may participate in Board meetings either in person
or through electronic means of communications.

If a director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by
the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
Director shall abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions and he/
she shall not be counted as a quorum in the Board meeting
discussing the matter concerned.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

EARRRR2017HF8 A25 A (28R )BT L
ERFRBFARE ((RRBFKE]) L 217K -
BZIECERET MBBAETRES FERE
BFEFRGARIL - HEHEDR EERRBFAE L
BRETRARARES -

RBEEREATAGRXEAIIG EEETEH
CH MBFERTELNAEFEER -EF
SEREEAT R RFITAREB R AKLZE
BREUWBRR - EFAREREBETERATA
SHEEEEHE -

HWEENEZERTEENKEAETELFARNE
R MEFERRZANGERBEALN A%
FEEANNRZBAFENESS SR LA
RERMERR - BB AETE AR



I

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

/\_LI_/\—/'\— N

TPEBIRRSE

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 10 Board meetings were held
and 1 general meeting of the Company was held. Set out below are
details of the attendance record of each Director at the Board
meetings, committee meetings and general meeting held during the
year ended 31 March 2018:

Board
Name of Director Meeting
4
EEnF &
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES
Mr. Lau Pong Sing (21285 ) (Chairman) BBKEE(FR) 10/10
Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina (F218) B2t 10/10
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR FHTES
Mr. Kitagawa Ken (£ )11#) (Note) N4 (FfeE) oA
Mr. LuTao (2:5) (Note) BELE () 4/8
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BV #{TEE
Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond ({i18%) EREL TR 9/10
Mr. Siu Chak Yu (FHEF) FEFRE 9/10
Mr. Li Ping Chi (Z/f5) FMEEE 10110

Note: Mr. Kitagawa Ken ceased to be a director of the Company on 20 June
2017 and Mr. Lu Tao was appointed as a director of the Company on
20 June 2017.

THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

An AGM is an important forum in which the management of the
Company can communicate with the shareholders. The last AGM
was held on 25 August 2017 and the upcoming AGM will be held on
23 August 2018.
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The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. The Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available to shareholders on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board Committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

The Audit Committee was established on 17 March 2016, with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.22 of the
Listing Rules and paragraph C3 of the CG Code. The Audit
Committee comprises three members, all being independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond, Mr. Siu
Chak Yu and Mr. Li Ping Chi (Chairman).

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include, among
others, making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and removal of the external auditor, reviewing the financial statements
and material advice in respect of financial reporting and overseeing
the internal control procedures of the Company.

The Company has complied with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in that
the Audit Committee must comprise a minimum three members at
least one of whom is an independent non-executive Director who
possesses appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required in Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee must be chaired by an
independent non-executive director.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 5 meetings of the Audit
Committee were held to make recommendations to the Board as
follows: (i) on the re-appointment of auditor and to approve the
engagement letter of the auditor; (i) advise the Board to engage the
Consultant to provide advisory services about internal controls
system. The Audit Committee also reviewed report on continuing
connected transactions every six months.

On 26 June 2018, another meeting was held to review the
Company’s continuing connected transactions and the Group’s
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018. The Audit
Committee is of the opinion that the financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2018 complied with the applicable
accounting standards and the Listing Rules.
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The Audit Committee oversees the corporate governance functions of
the Company. The responsibilities of the Audit Committee in relation
to corporate governance functions are set out in the terms of
reference of the Audit Committee. Upon the listing of the Company,
the Audit Committee appointed an international consulting firm to
perform a CG Code compliance review. The review covered the
Company’s terms of reference of board committees, corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the senior
management and disclosures in the Corporate Governance Report.
The Consultant has provided certain recommendations on improving
the Company’s corporate governance practices, which the Company
has adopted accordingly to ensure sound corporate governance
practices.

The Nomination Committee was established on 17 March 2016, with
specific written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A5
of the CG Code. The Nomination Committee comprises three
members, being one executive Director, namely, Mr. Lau Pong Sing
(Chairman), and two independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Siu Chak Yu and Mr. Li Ping Chi. Accordingly, a majority of the
members are independent non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 1 meeting of the Nomination
Committee was held to review the terms and conditions of the
appointment of the non-executive director, Lu Tao, and Mr. Lu Tao
was appointed on 20 June 2017.
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The Remuneration Committee was established on 17 March 2016,
with specific written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.26
of the Listing Rules and paragraph B1 of the CG Code. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three members, being one
executive Director, namely, Mr. Lau Pong Sing, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Siu Chak Yu (Chairman) and Mr.
Li Ping Chi. Accordingly, a majority of the members are independent
non-executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include,
among others, (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a set of formal and
transparent procedures for developing policies on such remuneration;
(ii) reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and (i) making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of executive Directors and members of senior
management.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 4 meetings of the
Remuneration Committee were held to review the remuneration
package of the individual executive Directors and senior management
and the staff of the Group and to make recommendations to the
Board on such remuneration packages.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE
SENIOR MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the senior management of the Company then
in office by band for the year ended 31 March 2018 are as follows:

Number of individuals

BREERERANE SO

BECEEARTHTAIKXEBISE  RERE
2018 F3ABIHILFE ARAREREMLND
BERERARSSNFEHFMFBOT

A®

Number of
Remuneration band individuals
48 Bl
Nil to HK$1,000,000 7 1,000,000/87C 3
HK$2,500,001 to 3,000,000 2,500,001 7% 7T 2 3,000,000 7 7T 2
Total 45T 5

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
March 2018 are set out in note to the consolidated financial
statements.

OTHER COMMITTEE

A Risk Management Committee under the management of the
Company has been established. The Risk Management Committee
comprises three members, being two executive Directors, namely,
Mr. Lau Pong Sing and Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina, and one senior staff
member of the Company, namely Mr. Wong Cheuk Man. The primary
responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee are to deliberate
risk management related policies and procedures, review the
effectiveness of risk management activities and handle issues of
emergency.

During the year ended 31 March 2018, 1 meeting was held to review
the enforcement of the Competition Law Compliance Policy stated in
the Prospectus.
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The Board adopts a board diversity policy. The Company recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the
quality of its performance. Diversity of Board members can be
achieved through consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity, in
addition to educational background, professional qualifications,
industry and regional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All the Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Mr. Lau Pong Sing, Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina, New Club House and
Great Club House (collectively the “Controlling Shareholders”),
have entered into a deed of non-competition dated 18 March 2016
(“Deed of Non-competition”) with the Company, pursuant to which
the Controlling Shareholders of the Company have irrevocably
undertaken to the Company that he/she/it would not, and would
procure that his/her/its close associates (except any members of the
Group) would not, during the restricted period, directly or indirectly,
either on his/her/its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person, firm or company, among other things, carry on,
participate or be interested or engaged in or acquire or hold (in each
case whether as shareholder, director, partner, agent, employee or
otherwise, and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) any business
which is or may be in competition with the business currently carried
on or contemplated to be carried on by any member of the Group
(save and except for certain residual contracts of which shall be
terminated upon their respective expiry dates (the details of which are
set out in the Prospectus)). Details of the Deed of Non-competition
are set out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has provided confirmation in
respect of compliance with his/her/its undertaking under the Deed of
Non-competition.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of
compliance by each of the Controlling Shareholders of the terms of
the Deed of Non-competition, and were satisfied that each of the
Controlling Shareholders has complied with his/her/its undertaking
under the Deed of Non-competition during the year ended 31 March
2018.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

EEERMEZTSZIULEHEER - AAFHALR
EEFERESTCHRARRAXRAE R R
R%Z - BBERZHRRVEREETEKNEZ T
£ ZERFRBREETERMER - Fik - YLE
SLER UREBEER HEXER TER

S E - REE - MBEMRGFH - IEEESF
HEGHERBAREST RE - ZEAERER

BEEA YROPBNEFSZITLER -
2 AR o - FRIZ MG 22 £ ~ New Club House &

Great Club House (#5713 [ R ]) B BEARF]

AV BEHAE2016F3 A18HMNIHEERZE (T
BMBRE] B ARFERREESAEE
AR BERE - REZREIEEA - § e
FEZFHEA (RNEBEAKERARKRIN T
BITRERIRREMNALT BRI RF - B
B (B eiE) #T  2EIBEEERINE
SUESFE (Tt UlRE - EF - 68 A
RIZ - EEXEMED - PR ART - Bk
EfREA)EMEAKAIREHAEFEAKLER
GEEIRREDE (S 0EX g e ol st ES
HUERESBEmBAHRLENE TR TEOK
INEFBEERRBIRER)) - BEATHEFEZED
BN R ER [BUERARABEER] —& -

BEERBEREHSE
{/\EE@L‘A PK o

TS RIBA T AR

BIUFATESCRHABZERERET I HRER
BHERNER  LEAZERERNEE2018
FIAB ILFEEETENRT RS RIEIA A
g



_LIL/'\—

PEERWME

\J/

For the year ended 31 March 2018, the remunerations paid or
payable to the external auditors in respect of its audit services and
non-audit services provided to the Group were approximately HK$1.7
million and HK$0.3 million, respectively. The non-audit services
consist of taxation, internal control advice and other services.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2018. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 78 to 84.

The Group has established a risk management framework, which
consists of the Board of Directors, the Audit Committee and the Risk
Management Committee. The Board of Directors determines the
nature and extent of risks that shall be taken in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, and has the overall responsibility for monitoring
the design, implementation and the overall effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems.

The Group has formulated and adopted Risk Management Policy in
providing direction in identifying, evaluating and managing significant
risks. At least on an annual basis, the Risk Management Committee
identifies risks that would adversely affect the achievement of the
Group’s objectives, and assesses and prioritizes the identified risks
according to a set of standard criteria. Risk mitigation plans and risk
owners are then established and assigned for those risks considered
o be significant.

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. The internal
controls are designed to meet the Group’s particular needs and to
minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed, and are designed
to manage rather than eliminate the risks to achieve business
objectives of the Group, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against misstatements or losses.
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The Company does not have an internal audit function. During the
year ended 31 March 2018, the Company engaged the Consultant to
review the effectiveness of certain of the Group’s internal controls
system. Deficiencies in the design and implementation of internal
controls are identified and recommendations are proposed for
improvement. Significant internal control deficiencies are reported to
the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors on a timely basis to
ensure prompt remedial actions are taken. Results of internal controls
review are reported to the Audit Committee and the Board at least
once a year. During the year under review, the Consultant has issued
the internal controls report (“IC Report”) to the Audit Committee and
the Board. The Board has adopted the advice made in the IC Report.

As a result of the above review, the Board confirms that the Group’s
risk management internal control systems are adequate and effective
and have complied with the CG Code provisions on internal control
throughout the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

The Group complies with requirements of Securities & Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The Group discloses inside
information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the safe harbours as provided in the
SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the Group
ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the Group
believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group
would immediately disclose the information to the public. The Group
is committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading
through the omission of a material fact. The Group is committed to
ensure that information contained in announcements is presented in
a clear and balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both
positive and negative facts.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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The role of the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) is performed by Mr. Wong Cheuk Man. The Company
Secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board’s processes and
communications among Board members, shareholders and the
management of the Company. The Company Secretary undertakes
at least 15 hours of relevant professional training annually to update
his skills and knowledge.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communications between the shareholders and the Board. An AGM
of the Company shall be held in each year and at the place as may
be determined by the Board.

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders of
the Company holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary at the head office of the Company in Hong
Kong, which is presently situated at Unit 15, 19th Floor, Concordia
Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong
Kong. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TOTHE BRUEESRHE:N

BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the REA[[AAQATESEZmMEH @ THBAQ TR
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office in ~ EEEM BRI A RIMEL o

Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD BERPEBERASREZENHERF
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT

SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 58 of the Articles for B E AR EERIARIE 2 RE R AETMENE
putting forward a resolution at an EGM. The requirements and 581§ - AR EMEFHEN X [RELFHBRE
procedures are set out above in the paragraph headed “Shareholders 4 3IA& | — & -

to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting”.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS EEXH

The Company has adopted, on 17 March 2016, the amended and AR RIE R 201643 A 17 BERAAN QA F H 2016
restated memorandum and articles of association of the Company 4 A8 B #E 4 R & 5] K E 5| 48 4 = 12 K4
which took effect from 8 April 2016. There was no change in the  F#MA| - RE E2018FE3A31T B IFFE - AR
constitutional documents of the Company during the year ended 31  RIAIEF2CHH M HIR & E) o

March 2018.

By order of the Board AEEEm

Lau Pong Sing BIFEL
Chairman and Executive Director FEFHITEF
26 June 2018 201846 A 26 H
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OVERVIEW =
The table below contains certain information about our Directors and ~ TXR#EHJETFTERES RS REEENEL -
senior management.

Date of
appointment
Date of joining to the current Responsibilities
Position the Group position in the Group
EZEHAIRN
B MAFEEWAK HEH REAEEHRE
Mr. Lau Pong Sing 61 Executive Director; 22 December 2004 11 June 2015 Our overall management
(ZIFBBX) Chairman; Chief and business development;
executive officer setting business strategies,
direction and goals
EE Y s 61 WTES EF 2004512 A 22 H 20156 A11 A BFMEREEREGER
THBH HIEEBEHRE  FAREE
Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina 60 Executive Director; 22 December 2004 11 June 2015 Overseeing our
(R218) Chief operating administration, financial
officer control and human
resources
Rt 60 WITES SBRE 20045127 22H 20156 A11H EERMOITH - BHEHR
ANER
Mr. Kitagawa Ken 62 Non-executive 10 December 2015~ 10 December 2015 Supervising the management
(L)1) Director (ceased to be of the Company
a director on
20 June 2017)
)IEE 62 FHTESE 20156 12 A10H 201512 A10H EBAARMER
(201756 A20H
RIEMEER)
Mr. Lu Tao (&)%) 56 Non-executive 20 June 2017 20 June 2017 Supervising the management
Director of the Company
BEEE 56 FHTESE 201756 A20H 201756 A20H EBAARMER

—T \FEH . oHEAERERRERAT 0D
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OVERVIEW (Continued)

Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tal,
Raymond ($#%)

AERELTIA

Mr. Siu Chak Yu
(2T

FETEE

Mr. Li Ping Chi
(FWF)

FmExE

Mr. Shinji Mitsuya

(ZXED)

“REZRE

Mr. Lau Tsz Fung

(8738
Byt
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79

79

57

57

58

58

64

64

32

32

Position

Bfu

Independent
Non-executive
Director

BUFHTES

Independent
Non-executive
Director

B ITES

Independent
Non-executive

Director
BAUFEHITES

Director of
AP Singapore

AP Singapore £

Vice president —

sales and marketing
BlEH (HEREH)

Annual Report 2018

Date of joining

the Group

MAREEH A H

17 March 2016

201653 H17H

17 March 2016

201653 A17H

17 March 2016

201653 A 17 H

3 March 2017

201743 A3H

1 April 2009

200954 A1H

13 4E))
Date of
appointment
to the current
position
EZEHAIRT
M B

17 March 2016

201653 A17H

17 March 2016

20163 A 17H

17 March 2016

201653 A 17 H

3 March 2017

2017 3H3H

1 April 2014

201454718

Responsibilities
in the Group

RAZRENRE

Supervising the management
of the Company

EERARNER

Supervising the management
of the Company

EEAARNER

Supervising the management
of the Company

Oversee the operations
business in AP Singapore,
a subsidiary of the
Company in Singapore

EBRDRRIINE N
& /A & AP Singapore
HEBEE

Overseeing our sales and
marketing affairs
EERMOEEREHER
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OVERVIEW (Continued) 0% G
Date of
appointment
Date of joining to the current Responsibilities
Position the Group position in the Group
EZEE AR
Bty MAXEEWAY WEH REASENBE
Mr. Wong Cheuk Man 52 Financial controller 1 January 2010 1 January 2010 Overseeing our financial
(E£8) management and company
secretarial matters
FEGEE 52 Bis e 2010%1 A1 8 2010%F1 A1 H EERMNMBEER
NGRS E=
Notes: FiE
(1) Mr. Lau is the spouse of Ms. Chan and father of Mr. TF Lau. (1) BIEERRZ LR MBI FEEENE -
(2)  Ms. Chan is the spouse of Mr. Lau and mother of Mr. TF Lau. @ BRI RBEENEERIFHREENEH -
@) Mr. Lau Tsz Fung (“Mr. TF Lau”) is the son of Mr. Lau and Ms. Chan. @ BIFBREERBEERRLLNAT -

(4)  Mr. Kitagawa ceased to be the non-executive Director of the Company ~ (4) b/l B4R 201766 20 A& ILE AR T
on 20 June 2017. FEMITES -

() Mr. LuTao is an employee of Kanamoto HK and Kanamoto Japan, and ~ (6) @& EEREABTEREAAANEE KK
was appointed as a non-executive Director of the Company on 20 June 20176 A20 HEZERARRIFFNTES °
2017.

The business address of our Directors and senior management is Unit  EEREREBENEB I AEBNELDHE

15, 19/F, Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road, Tsim Sha Tsui REIZERE1RELREH19E15E ©
East, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of six Directors, comprising two
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. The following table sets forth
information regarding our Directors. The functions and duties of the
Board include convening shareholders’ meetings, reporting on the
Board’s work at these meetings, implementing the resolutions passed
at these meetings, determining business and investment plans,
formulating our annual budget and final accounts, and formulating our
proposals for profit distributions and for the increase or reduction of
registered capital. In addition, the Board is responsible for exercising
other powers, functions and duties in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

Annual Report 2018
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Executive Directors

Mr. LAU Pong Sing 2/38

Executive Director, chairman and chief executive officer

Mr. Lau, aged 61, was appointed as our executive Director and
Chairman of the Board on 11 June 2015 and concurrently serves as
our chief executive officer. Mr. Lau is primarily responsible for the
Group’s overall management and business development, as well
setting our business strategies, direction and goals. Mr. Lau is also a
member of our Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
Mr. Lau is the chairman of our Nomination Committee.

Prior to joining the Group in 2004 as one of the founders, Mr. Lau had
accumulated over 20 years of experience in the construction
equipment industry through his directorship in and management of
Ajax Pong Construction Equipment Limited from September 1983 to
March 1992 and Ajax Pong (Holdings) Limited from April 1992 to
December 2014. Mr. Lau had in the past managed or oversight
various aspects of the Group, including business development and
strategies, financial management and management of training to be
given to our employees. Under the leadership of Mr. Lau and Ms.
Chan, the Group has entered into strategic partnership agreements
with reputable construction equipment suppliers, and participated in
a number of landmark construction projects.

Mr. Lau is the spouse of Ms. Chan and father of Mr. TF Lau.

Ms. CHAN Kit Mui, Lina B2

Executive Director and chief operating officer

Ms. Chan, aged 60, has been our executive Director since 11 June
2015 and also serves as our chief operating officer. She is in charge
of the Group’s administration, financial control and human resources.

Prior to joining the Group in 2004 as one of the founders, Ms. Chan
has acquired over 20 years of experience in the construction
equipment industry. She was principally responsible for corporate
reorganisation, business management control, as well as setting up
corporate administration systems and finance systems, during her
positions as deputy managing director of Ajax Pong Construction
Equipment Limited from April 1989 to March 1992, and deputy
managing director of Ajax Pong (Holdings) Limited from April 1992 to
December 2014.
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Executive Directors (Continued)

Since joining the Group, she has worked closely with Mr. Lau to
expand the Group’s business in Hong Kong and Macau and assisted
in the set up of our current operation system and staff welfare scheme.

Ms. Chan obtained a Secretarial Diploma from the Chinese Young Men’s
Christian Association of Hong Kong in May 1978 and an Intermediate
Stage Certificate in Book-keeping from the London Chamber of
Commerce and Industry in Spring 1978. She also completed the
Computerized Accounting System for Commerce and Industry Training
Course given by the Hong Kong Productivity Council in October 1986.

Ms. Chan is the spouse of Mr. Lau and mother of Mr. TF Lau.
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Non-executive Director

Mr. Kitagawa Ken it )| {&

(ceased as a Non-executive Director on 20 June 2017)

Mr. Kitagawa, aged 62, was a non-executive Director of the Company
and was responsible for supervising the overall management of the
Group.

Mr. Kitagawa serves as the director and chief operating officer of
Kanamoto HK. Since joining Kanamoto HK in July 2009, Mr.
Kitagawa has been responsible for overseeing its management and
business operations. His duties and roles include formulating the
company’s business plans and strategies in Hong Kong, ensuring
proper distribution of the company’s resources, as well as liaising
with both overseas and local customers. He also monitors the
Company’s financial control and performance.

Prior to joining Kanamoto HK, he had gained over 28 years of
experience in the banking and finance industry. He served various
positions in the Hokkaido Takushoku Bank from April 1980 to March
1998, where he was responsible for a variety of duties including
economic research, loan judgement and general affairs. He was a
controller with THK America Inc. and later a manager of corporate
compliance in legal department with THK Co., Ltd from April 1998 to
March 2007. He later joined CEL Group Holdings Inc. in May 2007
and held the position as managing director of Operation between
September 2007 and March 2008 before becoming a regional
manager of Aeon Bank for the Hokkaido area.

Mr. Kitagawa obtained his chartered member of The Securities
Analysts Association of Japan in September 1996. He obtained a
Bachelor’s degree in Commerce from Waseda University in March
1980.
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Non-executive Director (Continued)

Mr. Lu Tao &%

Non-executive Director

Mr. Lu Tao (3J&), aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 20 June 2017. He has extensive experience in
management level in multinational engineering companies. He serves
as the chief operating officer of Kanamoto HK which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Kanamoto Japan since April 2017. He also
serves as a Director and General Manager of Kanamoto (China)
Investment Co., Ltd. since September 2017. Prior to joining
Kanamoto HK, Mr. Lu has been working in Komatsu Limited as
manager from April 1992 to March 2002 (responsible for overseas
global business in China), Komatsu America Corporation as manager
from October 2005 to December 2010 (responsible for overseas
business in mining equipment), SANY Heavy Machinery Company
Limited as general manager from January 2011 to January 2012
(responsible for overseas business for excavators), Lonking Holdings
Limited as general manager from January 2012 to March 2013
(responsible for overseas business in construction machinery
equipment), LiuGong Machinery Co., Limited as general manager
from July 20183 to July 2014 (responsible for overseas and domestic
business in mining equipment), Sunward Intelligent Equipment
Company Limited as general manager from March 2015 to March
2016 (responsible for overseeing domestic business in mining
equipment in China) and Kanamoto Japan as the general manager of
business coordination headquarters from March 2016 till present
(responsible for overseeing the global business for construction
equipment rental). He obtained his Master degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Kyoto University and Bachelor degree in South
China University of Technology (formerly known as South China
Institute of Technology).

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

FEMITESE(8)

BEkE

IFRITEF

BIESE 565 R2017F6A0HEZ T A
BUFMITES - BPNEEBEETIREAREERE
THAEHEZELR - HFB2017F4ARETESR
HAZEWB AR AEBLERE - R8 2017
FORRTECRAER(PE)IREERAAE
ERABLIE - MBESAEB 2R BER 1992
F4AZ 200253 A GEBIKN 21t MARMERT
I AERENPEEENEIINERES R
2005410 A Z=2010% 12 A T B Komatsu
America Corporation 312 - B HEERERE S
EHEINETS  R20114F 1 AE2012F 1 A EE
B-—ERERARAKIE BEREE@EEHE
HH)EINETS  R2012F 1 AR 20134 3 A &B{E
BB TIERAERARGLIE  BEEREEH
EREM B ENEINEL R2013F7AZE
201457 ASEREAN IHMROD AR AR
I AERERBRESENBERINES R
2015 3 AE 2016 F 3 A & FH: L1 5 g2 25 A%
MERRRLKE  AERTBIEEEBRESR
BHERER  B2016F3AZSEISAAR
EBRERNBKIE aEEEEHEEREL
TARBOERER - HEERAALEHIETS
BB RERETAS (AEBERITER) 24

B -



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

—

=

g

= N E A E IR

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond fi/{& %

Independent non-executive Director

Ir. Dr. Ho Chung Tai, Raymond, SBS, MBE, S.B. St. J., JP, aged 79,
was appointed as our independent non-executive Director on 17
March 2016. He is a member of our Audit Committee.

Dr. Ho has over 50 years of experience in civil, structural,
environmental and geotechnical engineering industries and has
directly managed a number of mega-sized engineering projects.

Dr. Ho received his degree of doctor of philosophy in Civil Engineering
from the City University of London in June 1971, an Honorary Doctor
of Laws from the University of Manchester in September 2001 and an
Honorary degree of Doctor of Business Administration from the City
University of Hong Kong in November 1999. He graduated from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1963 with a Bachelor of
Science in Engineering and obtained his diploma for advanced
studies in engineering, soil mechanics from the University of
Manchester in July 1964.

As at the date of the annual report, Dr. Ho served or is currently
serving as director of the following listed public companies in Hong

Kong:

Period

HE

Since December 2013 Independent non-executive director
H2013F 12 At BIFMITER
Since September 2007  Independent non-executive director
B 2007 9 At BYIFRITES
Since June 2005 Independent non-executive director
H 20054 6 A i BIFHMITES

Since September 1993  Independent non-executive director

B 199349 A it BWUIEITES

BIUERTES

fERELTEM

BUHNITEF

fdEZRE L+ T2A0 - SREFIEE - MBE - B
A BB KP4t 0 795% 0 R20164F 3 A
17 AEZEABUENTES - RAERZES
KB o
ETREAR - &1 BERETTIRERES
S50F#E REEERSZEAATIRIAR -

AIEEM 1971 F6 ARBHIWMAZLATRE
MEGTEA - 2001 F9 ARB S /AT AE
REBEBIE T B RN 1999 F 11 A BB HEH
MASTIEERBLBIE T2 - FR19634F
11ARBBRBRE  USTESBEB T8
WH1964 7 ARG EMATFRAESREIER T
BNEMEOR -

8 =

w=

RERAE  AELBRRIEEETHEELT
RPRBENES:

Listed public company on the Stock Exchange
BT ARAR

ChinLink International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 997)
LER 2 BRIERBR AT (RGHRHE : 997)

GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3800)
RN MERERIZERBR AR (RO AR - 3800)

China State Construction International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 3311)
PR EBREEBR AR (GRS - 3311)

Deson Development International Holdings Limited

(stock code: 262)
MEEEAREEGRAT (RMHRR : 262)
sHARERRERAT (9
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Other current appointments and offices of Dr. Ho are further set out
below:

Current appointments and offices e
B Al fEan MBS

BIJERTTEE(B)
g+ B AR A e MBI E—SE T

Chairman of the Guangdong Daya Bay Nuclear Plant and Ling Ao Nuclear
Plant Safety Consultative Committee (since February 2005)

o BERERDERBUNRBEREURLZEEAZESIFE(B200552 i)

° Professional advisor to the Office of the Ombudsman of Hong Kong (for the
periods 1 July 1995 to 31 March 2013 and 1 October 2015 to present)
o BARFHEEAEZEEM995F7 A1HZE201343 A31 HEIM k20155

1081BHES)

Mr. SIU Chak Yu #2F

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Siu, BBS, JP, aged 57, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 17 March 2016. He is a member of our
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee. Mr. Siu is the chairman of our Remuneration Committee.

Mr. Siu has gained experience in legal practice in Hong Kong. He
obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree and a Postgraduate Certificate in
Laws from the University of Hong Kong in November 1983 and July
1984, respectively. He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in
September 1986, England and Wales in June 1990, Australian Capital
Territory in February 1991, and in Singapore in September 1992; and
as a barrister in Australia in February 1991. Mr. Siu was appointed as
a Notary Public in April 1997, a China-Appointed Attesting Officer in
January 2000, and currently a partner of Hastings & Co.

Mr. Siu is currently the chairman of the Environmental Impact
Assessment Appeal Board, deputy chairman of the HKSAR Passports
Appeal Board and a board member of the Estates Agents Authority.

Mr. LI Ping Chi /&

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Li, aged 58, was appointed as our independent non-executive
Director on 17 March 2016. He is a member of our Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr. Li is the
chairman of our Audit Committee.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Li has over 30 years of experience in accounting and auditing. He
was an assistant assessor for the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department from August 1982 to February 1985. He joined Touche
Ross Hong Kong in March 1985 and was promoted to the position of
audit manager in August 1989. He later joined Deloitte China in April
1990 as a result of its merger with Touche Ross Hong Kong and had
been a partner from June 1996 to May 2013.

Mr. Li received a higher diploma in accountancy with distinction from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1982. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Our senior management members are responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Company’s business. None of the members of
our senior management has been a director of a public company the
securities of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong
or overseas.

Mr. Mitsuya Shinji = x5 =

Director of AP Singapore

Mr. Mitsuya, aged 64, has been the consultant of a subsidiary of the
Company, AP Rentals Limited, since 1st of January, 2017. In the
wake of establishment of a new company under the Group in
Singapore, AP Singapore, he was appointed and assigned as
Director of AP Singapore on 3 March 2017.

Mr. Mitsuya’s main roles are to launch an equipment rental business
in Singapore capitalizing the Group’s experience and know-how as a
solution provider, to develop a new market in the South Pacific Ocean
and to establish a closer relationship and communications with
Japanese partners based on long term strategy.

Prior to joining the Group, he has been in Europe from 2007 to 2012,
three years in Lyon, France and three years in Utrecht, Holland as a
general manager of local company of Furukawa Unic Corporation,
establishing new sales channels in EU countries.
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He has been engaged in overseas marketing since early 1980th at
Hokuetsu Industries Co., Ltd., known as Airman air-compressor until
2016.

Having been working for a long time for Japanese construction
machinery manufacturers, he expanded sales opportunities through
new dealers including commencement of local production in the
global market. He obtained Bachelor’s degree in Mechanical
Engineering from Kanto Gakuin University in March 1977.

Mr. LAU Tsz Fung (2]F$%), aged 32, is our vice president and oversees
the sales and marketing department of the Company. He is principally
responsible for encouraging sustainable development through the
delivery of updated market analysis and information, and works
closely with the sales team in attracting potential customers and
contracts. His roles and duties include maintaining a high volume of
rental transactions and good relationships with worldwide
manufacturers and suppliers. Mr. TF Lau has completed training
sessions on construction equipment given by Donaldson Company,
Inc., Nippon Sharyo, Ltd., Furukawa UNIC Corporation and Denyo
Co., Ltd..

Mr. TF Lau received his Bachelor’s degree in Business Economics
from the University of California Santa Barbara in September 2008.
Prior to joining the Group as a sales and marketing officer in April
2009, he was a marketing officer assistant at Ajax Pong (Holdings)
Limited from April 2008 to June 2008, where he was responsible for
managing relationship with potential customers and overseas buyers.

Mr. TF Lau is the son of Mr. Lau and Ms. Chan.

Mr. WONG Cheuk Man (£ £#)), aged 52, is the financial controller,
company secretary and one of the authorised representatives of the
Company. He is primarily responsible for the Group’s accounting,
internal control, financial reporting, resource management and
information technology affairs.
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Mr. Wong graduated from the University of Western Sydney Nepean
with a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration in September
1999 and obtained a Master’s degree in International Accounting
from the City University of Hong Kong in November 2001. Mr. Wong
has over 29 years of experience in accounting. He was an assistant
accountant at Sanyo Electric (Hong Kong) Ltd. from July 1987 to April
1990, cost accountant and later assistant finance manager of STD
Holding Ltd. from August 1990 to September 1994. He served as
accounting manager and subsequently financial controller of Ajax
Pong (Holdings) Limited from September 1994 prior to joining the
Group in January 2010.

Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

Each of our senior management did not hold any other directorship in
listed public companies in the three years prior to the date of this
annual report.
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF AP RENTALS HOLDINGS LIMITED
DRAEEZRERAF

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AP Rentals
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 85 to 156, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Making another century of impact
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

BRETERSRERMNERHE - BAHN
PG AR BREANEFEARAEENTIR - FLR
HRERMETERGAVBRREL AR AR
EITRERN - RATSHELFHREHEBNE
8o

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of plant and machinery

P55 2 #4411

We identified the impairment assessment of plant and
machinery as a key audit matter due to the significance of
the carrying value of plant and machinery to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and the
judgements associated with the assessment of the
recoverable amount of plant and machinery by the
management of the Group.

ERME REMH R ES RS M mRNEE I
% BEEEIEEERRE R AT WS & FEATE L &)
HIET - BB RIME RAEOR BT R Es T =E

As disclosed in the note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, the carrying value of plant and machinery
reported under property, plant and equipment as at 31
March 2018 was HK$190,086,000.
BANERE W SR M TE 14 PR 88 - A 20184F3 314 -
M BEREEETHERKE IEMOERER
190,086,000 7T °

As detailed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the determination of the recoverable amounts
of the assets is based on the higher of:

MANAR S B TS ER AR B 5T 4 Pl - B E R P E & IR A
TEEFNRREETE :

° Value in use, based on the estimation on the future
profitability from leasing the assets, future utilisation
and future lease rates; and
FREE EEAMGFTHEEETRORRETGE
71 RRERBEREARRES + &

° Fair value less cost of disposal, based on the
estimation on resale values, with reference to the
historical disposal values or market transactions.
AEERDEXS EEAL2BBAHEEEBERT
BRENEGTTEEEEEE -

Our procedures in relation to the management’s impairment
assessment of plant and machinery included:
BB ERBRE KR EE T T BN IE 7 848

o Understanding the management’s impairment assessment
process on identifying assets that may be indicative to be
impaired, and evaluating the reasonableness of the
management’s assessment with reference to the utilisation
and income generated from the plant and machinery in
recent years;

EMiBIE - Y2RAFHERERNERERRMES
WA EEEEHNFHREAIE

o Assessing the reasonableness of the management’s key
assumptions used to estimate the value in use of the
plant and machinery by evaluating the estimated future
income generated from the assets with reference to the
historical utilisation and lease rates, the management’s
business plan, or other relevant information in the
industry; and
2BBAFABRARES  EEEMNEKTEISHEAMT
XHE@EER  TEEEEETROBTEGE N REEME
AT A AT X E 18 B (A 5T B R eyt R E AR
FIERANEERRZEEA/E &

o Assessing the reasonableness of the fair value less cost
of disposal estimated by the management by checking,
on a sample basis, to the recent disposal values, third
parties’ quotations or transaction prices of similar assets
in the market.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ERVRES SRS &S

Key audit matters

BRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BANESTNNHERETSRETEE

Recoverability of trade receivables

B 5 BN R oK B2 E

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as a
key audit matter due to the significance of trade
receivables to the consolidated financial statements as
a whole and the judgements associated with the
assessment of the recoverability of trade receivables by
the management of the Group.
EREZRWHEHERSFEVBREANEZMAR &
SEERENLE SR UGRIER R U S AR E AT A #
B - BAAIHEAIE S EUGRIEN AT W EIIRE AR E =
5 o

As disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements, the trade receivables amounted to
HK$61,384,000, out of which HK$52,571,000 was
past due but not impaired as at 31 March 2018.
WMANERE ISR 17 FTHRER - M 201843 A31H -
& 5 FE W 3T £ 61,384,000 7T+ H H152,571,0007 7T
FIEE @ AERIRE o

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, in determining the recoverability of trade
receivables, management judgements are required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including debt ageing, settlement history and collection
after the end of the reporting period, project status,
business relationship with customers and general
economic and market conditions.
WA M BREMT4TRE  EEERECOHES
JRE W R TR B R U [B1 A2 2 B - 7R PO AT A 3% 55 e R B ix
REBRERSIELHE  BEEHBERER  SEIERR
WMEHREBHYEER  BHEEE  HEFPHEFRR
VAR BERE 4 R TSRO ©
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Our procedures in relation to the recoverability of trade

receivables included:
B E ZERFEN K EEERENEZFEE

Obtaining an understanding of how allowance for trade
receivables is estimated by the management;
PR B IR B AN (A1 2 5 JE IR e 4

Checking the accuracy of the ageing of trade
receivables, on a sample basis, to the documents
supporting the recognition of receivables and the credit
terms granted;

& BB A% AR IE YR IE R AT B E B AR S -
Bind g 5 RGN Rl 2 5 2

Evaluating the management’s assessment on the
recoverability of trade receivables by examining, on a
sample basis, the settlement history and the collection
after the end of the reporting period of these
receivables; and

FRMBEERZERRFIEN A E RS NS RE
B EIER - R E R E Y E 5 R FIER AT B2 R
PEHEVEHE -

Assessing the information in respect of the business
relationship with customers and general economic and
market conditions provided by the management.

AR EREMRRHEEERTEPNRBHEARERL
R TSERRER o
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

BERAEEFHHEMERAR - RBEAEET
HRFRANER - ETBEREMBRER K
FIRAZZREM TR &

BAESEAMBRENERL TRELMER -
B ZEEMEABER T ANERLHS

A
Ay ©
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Ka-Lai Man.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 June 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Z a N\ 7/
I“/—J-\ E/\

H 2 1A U

For the year ended 31 March 2018 %zi 2018 F 3 A31HILFE

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5E F#ET FAT
Revenue W zs 5 225,261 200,491
Cost of sales and services SHE RARF A AN (168,015) (154,100)
Gross profit EF 57,246 46,391
Other income HEaA 6 3,863 4,768
Other gains and losses Hilhzs R ER 7 7,153 1,956
Administrative expenses TR (40,929) (34,363)
Listing expenses EmRAX - (1,1171)
Finance costs BhE R AN 8 (1,036) (2,358)
Profit before tax BRE AT A 26,297 15,283
Income tax expense FrSFiRY 9 (5,216) (3,312
Profit for the year REERF] 10 21,081 11,971
Other comprehensive expense REFHEMBEMX
for the year
Item that may be reclassified HEi#n & B2 EmmER -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on REGINEGEENE N Z5E
translation of foreign operations -
Total comprehensive income AFErAEKTERE
for the year 11,971
Earnings per share FRRAR
— Basic (HK cents) — EAGE) 13 1.41

—T \FEH - CHARERRERAT OD



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR MR

At 31 March 2018 7201843 431 H

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHET
Non-current Assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BB NEE 14 192,763
Deposit placed for a life SRREFN
insurance policy 15 2,565
195,328
Current Assets REEE
Inventories FE 16 12,583
Trade receivables, deposits and EHRWEIE « e
prepayments TERTRIE 17 63,540
Investment in certificate of deposit FRUBEIRE 18 6,047
Pledged bank deposits BERIRITIFR 19 2,360
Bank deposit with original maturity FRESEBBE=EAN
over three months H|ITER 19 10,038
Bank deposits with original maturity REEE & =18 A XA
less than three months RITER 19 -
Bank balances and cash RITEBR RIS 19 44,960
139,528
Current Liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 NHAENFIE 20 44,336
Tax liabilities HEEE 808
Obligations under finance leases MERSEE 21 45
Borrowings — due within one year B — —FREE 22 33,802
78,991
Net Current Assets RBEERE 60,5637
Total Assets less Current Liabilities B EERABE R 255,865
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ARE MBS AR LR

At 31 March 2018 7201843 431 H

2018 2017
2018 2017 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T
Non-current Liabilities kRBERS
Deferred tax liabilities RELEFIEAE 23 22,433
Borrowings — due after one year B — —F1R 3 22 -
22,433
Net Assets EEBE 233,432
Capital and Reserves B HEE
Issued capital BT 24 864
Reserves i 232,568
Total Equity R 233,432

The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 90 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26
June 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

LAU PONG SING
BIFBK

Director
-

HRESSBHEEF VB ZEAMERERE N 2018
FeA26 AEEESHMERETIE - WhH T

BEEREREE

CHAN KIT MUI, LINA
R

Director
2

—m_ g . oEAREZRERAF OF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

= N\ /4=y
/ N\, /nom
e EmEBIR

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # %2018 3 A31 HILFE

Issued Share
capital premium
BRT

BRE  ROEE

HK$'000  HK$000
TEL FET

Merger
reserve

Aot
HK$'000
THBL
(Note i)

Legal Translation Retained
reserve  reserve profits Total

EEfE ERRE KREEH Mgt

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000
FET  TET TR TER
(Note ii)

At 1 April 2016 R2016%4 1R 27 129,794
Profit and total comprehensive R & 7 2 B iz 258

income for the year = -
Dividend recognised as BRAD KRS

distrioution (note 12) (FizE12) - -
Issue of shares upon B BITE BTG

capitalisation (note 24(j) (FT3E24()) 686 (686)
Issue of new shares pursuant to 1R 15 & R AR B E%ETT

the initial public offering HRR 1 (B 3% 24(i)

(note 24(i) 151 113,249
Share issue expenses ROHBTREE - (10,012
At 31 March 2017 201763 B 318
Profit for the year KEFHA

Exchange differences arisingon & INERRE A
translation of foreign operations  [E ¥ =%

Total comprehensive (expense) AFE 2 (fis) Was#E 8

income for the year
Dividend recognised as REDEARE
distribution (note 12) (FizE12)
At 31 March 2018 R201843 A31 A
Notes:

Merger reserve represents the difference between the amount of share
capital and share premium of the Company issued, and the issued
share capital of AP Rentals Limited exchanged in connection with the
Group reorganisation on 21 July 2015.

ii. In accordance with the Article 377 of the Commercial Code of Macau
Special Administrative Region, the subsidiary registered in Macau is
required to transfer part of its profits of each accounting period of not
less than 25% as legal reserve, until it reaches an amount equal to half
of the capital.
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(B

(102,443)

(102,443)

(102,443)

(FysEi)

12 6) 93,107 120,492

= = 11,971 11,971

2419 (2419

- - - 113400
- - - (10,012

(5) 102,659 233,432

21,081 21,081

(45)

21,081 21,036

(8,294)  (8,294)

115,446 246,174

AOHEBIEA AR B BITRASE RN EE R
AAEBER2015F7 21 HEAMR BT EF
HEERARIEBITRAZEZFE -

RIBRPYRF BT IR PR H S 377 15 - FOIRPIGE
e B R A AR E & &5 IR DR 25%H)
BANEREXERHE  ERENRSENEEL—
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &£ 201843 A31 HIFF/E

Operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Allowance for doubtful debts
recognised, net
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Finance costs
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Interest income
Listing expenses

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Decrease (increase) in inventories

(Increase) decrease in trade receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Decrease in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations
Income tax refunded (paid)

Net cash from operating activities

Investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Withdrawal of deposit with original maturity
over three months
Placement of deposit with original
maturity over three months
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits
Placement of pledged bank deposits
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of (purchase of)
investment in certificate of deposit

Net cash used in investing activities

RERE

Bk 50 A1 i 7

LA TIRB (EHFRE -
B MR R AR R 5 R

W% BB MRETE

BB KA
HEME - BB MR RS

S A

EMRAX
LEESHPINELERTRE
FER D ()

BZREFOR - e RANFA

(3800) 9.
.5 REMB IR

BEMBRES
2RE (E) FTEH

EEEBFEREFE
BEED

B A8
WEWE  BE RS E

{REUR |8 BRI = 8 A 7K
BRI B BB = A 7K
RO TR
FEEEMRTER
HER S RS RE

HE(BE) FRREREMSEHA

REFHMAREFE

T \FEH

2017
2017 5
HK$’000
FAT

15,283

168

41,108
2,358

(2,268)

(673)
1,111

57,187

(5,685)

9,986
(10,849)

50,639
(7,725)

42,914

438
(68,335)

(10,038)

(2,360)

6,538

(6,047)

(79,804)

DEAREERERAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &£ 201843 A31 HILF/E

Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of new shares
pursuant to the initial public offering

Interest paid

Listing expenses paid

New borrowings raised

Repayments of borrowings

Repayments of obligations under
finance leases

Dividend paid

Net cash (used in) from
financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

Analysis of the balances of cash
and cash equivalents

Bank deposits with original maturity
less than three months

Bank balances and cash

AP Rentals Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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RERREEEWEMNFER

FORERBEEEEY

NEEERE Y S

FEREERBEEEY

RERREEEWERDN

JRBIE B R =18 A ARV ERTTE

RITHEBRERE

2017
2017
HK$’000
FET

113,400
(2,358)
7,172)

(41,441)

(285)
(2,419)

59,725

22,835

22,125

44,960

44,960

44,960
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &£ 201843 A31 HIFF/E

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company and
registered in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands on 11 June 2015. The shares of
the Company have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect from 8 April
2016. The addresses of the registered office of the Company is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business
is Unit 15, 19/F Concordia Plaza, 1 Science Museum Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details
of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note
34.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the
Group”) have applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the amendments
to HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &£ 201843 A31 HILF/E

AP Rentals Holdings Limited

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. In addition, the amendments
also require disclosures on changes in financial assets if cash
flows from those financial assets were, or future cash flows will
be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;
(iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
these items is provided in note 33. Consistent with the transition
provisions of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart from the
additional disclosure in note 33, the application of these
amendments has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &£ 201843 A31 HIFF/E

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration’

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS
4 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 9  Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation?
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & Z= 201843 A31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement?

Amendments to HKAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 28  As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle!

Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfers of Investment Property!

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined
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New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

Except for the new and revised HKFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group
are in relation to the impairment of financial assets. HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurements. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 March 2018, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the expected credit
loss model of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of credit
losses which are not yet incurred in relation to the Group’s
financial assets measured at amortised costs and other items
that are subject to the impairment provisions upon application
of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if
the expected credit loss model were to be applied by the
Group, there would be slightly increased on the accumulated
amount of impairment loss to be recognised by the Group as at
1 April 2018 as compared to the accumulated amount
recognised under HKAS 39.
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AP Rentals Holdings Limited

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

e  Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations, principal
versus agent considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate the
application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods.
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HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents operating lease
payments as operating cash flows. Under HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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AP Rentals Holdings Limited

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, the Group has non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$4,042,000 as disclosed in note 29.
A preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements will
meet the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$869,000 as rights under leases to which
HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments
under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to
the right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying
amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost
and such adjustments are considered as additional lease
payments. Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid
would be included in the carrying amount of right-of-use assets.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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AP Rentals Holdings Limited

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

° has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

U has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and

cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
value and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined using the first-in,
first-out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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AP Rentals Holdings Limited

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables and held-to-maturity investments. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including deposit placed for a life insurance policy, trade
receivables and deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank deposit
with original maturity over three months, bank deposits with
original maturity less than three months, and bank balances and
cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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AP Rentals Holdings Limited

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity dates
that the Group’s management has the positive intention and
ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial recognition,
held-to-maturity investments (including investment in certificate
of deposit) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amounts are reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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AP Rentals Holdings Limited

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables and
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed.

Rental income from machinery leasing under operating lease is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Operating service income and other service income are
recognised when services are provided.

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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AP Rentals Holdings Limited

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the corresponding tax base
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve.

mm| (&)
BEERAEERABNREREZEAENR
SREEHRBHERZIHEGAE - AR
SHMRCERIARE LD BRI HE (R
BED)) RERE o

BELERARBREEZFTERBRMIZASE
EEANREM RGOS EERLEERE
ERREE ENBIRAR -

BIEA NIRRT R IB I AN B s NFER » BRIER
BREREMEHAKREANNEENERSD
HERIMIRR - Rl 5 B ROR E B IR IR R
H At 22T et R S B 1R M i P AR

Sres
RimREER R EERNPIEHREE - A
ERZEEBUINEE (SME) EITHX
HIRZ 5 ANBRITERHER - RIREHR -
IMNESIEMESIEB A A RTEXSE
IE o LINEDIERE LA B 3E
E¥BEA T TENGRE

OB A T 2 B R E A
B3 PR o

REJGAMBRE  AEEBINEEER
ERABERRENREMERBER/AE
B258% BT - RARRAXABRR
FRFIHEXGE - i HI R E R AR
B ARBXZBEHNEMNEER - EER
PE 34 598 (A0 8 ) A Hth 2 [ U e o e AR K
IREE S R R s RET -

T \FEH DEAREERERAR



Zniﬂ

AN

SRR e

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &£ 201843 A31 HILF/E

AP Rentals Holdings Limited

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as obligations under
finance leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and Provident
Fund Individual Accounts, are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such

as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.
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Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
(Continued)

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee
benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting
date. Any changes in the liabilities’ carrying amounts resulting
from service cost, interest and remeasurements are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that another HKFRS
requires or permits their inclusion in the cost of an asset.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets within
the next financial year.
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AP Rentals Holdings Limited

Impairment assessment of plant and machinery

The Group’s major operating assets are plant and machinery
included in property, plant and equipment. The management
performs review for impairment of these plant and machinery
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying values may not be recovered.

The recoverable amounts of the plant and machinery are
determined based on the higher of value in use calculations and
fair value less cost of disposal. In determining the value in use
calculation, the management estimates the future profitability
from leasing the assets, future utilisation and future lease rates,
while the determination of the fair value less cost of disposal
requires the management to estimate the resale values, with
reference to the historical disposal values or market
transactions. Where the actual cash flows are less than
expected, or changes in facts and circumstances result in
reduction of estimated cash flows, impairment loss may arise.
At 31 March 2018 the carrying amount of plant and machinery
is HK$190,086,000 (2017: HK$184,033,000).

Recoverability of trade receivables

Allowance for doubtful debts is made when there is objective
evidence that the recoverability of trade receivables becomes
doubtful. As at 31 March 2018, the carrying amounts of trade
receivables is HK$61,384,000 (2017: HK$61,027,000), out of
which HK$52,571,000 (2017: HK$51,271,000) was past due
but not impaired. In determining the recoverability of trade
receivables, management makes assumptions and applies
judgements in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including debt ageing, settlement history and
collection after the end of the reporting period, project status,
business relationship with customers and general economic
and market conditions. The directors of the Company believe
that there will not be a material change in the estimates or
assumptions which are used in the calculations of recoverable
amount of trade receivables. However, when the actual
outcome or expectation in the future is less or more than the
original estimates, additional or reversal of impairment loss may
arise.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z2018F 3 A31 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s revenue represents the net amounts received or
receivable for machinery leased, goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
returns.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

Leasing income of machinery HE AR AR A
Sales of machinery and parts W R EHEE
Operating service income 4 RIS U A
Other service income H At ARFEUA
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2017
20174
HK$’000
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For the year ended 31 March 2018  # %2018 3 A31 HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

For management purpose, the Group is organised based on its
business activities. The Group determines its operating
segments based on these business activities that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, i.e. the
executive directors of the Company, for the purpose of
resources allocation and performance assessment.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments
under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments are as follows:

Leasing —  Leasing of machinery, and related operating
and other services

Trading —  Sales of machinery and parts, and related
operating and other services

Segment information about these reportable and operating
segments is presented below:

Segment revenue and results
For the year ended 31 March 2018
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Leasing Trading Total
HE BEE #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TR FRET FRExT

Revenue &3

Segment revenue from external KRB INEBE B B E

customers ! : 225,261
Results 0
Segment results DR ! 5 59,325

AOBEA 873
AOBFIX (33,901)

Unallocated income
Unallocated expenses

Consolidated profit before tax AEBEWEGREBRBIREF

of the Group
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Segment revenue and results (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Revenue Y=

KB IMNRE P B 7 B R

Segment revenue from external

customers
Results E
Segment results DEEE
Unallocated income KA BUA
Unallocated expenses AL x
Consolidated profit before tax RE B AR S BREL A& A

of the Group

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment results represent the profit earned
by each segment without allocation of interest income, sundry
income, listing expenses and central administration expenses.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as the
information is not regularly reported to the chief operating
decision maker for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of performance.
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Leasing Trading Total
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(28,9006)

15,283

BRI 2B IR ED NS BOREMES
Pt R B R &5 RRER - D EEER
& #B AT BREUE A (R SR - IR
A~ LR ERRITEASX T FOE)
HAERTHFEERRENGTE U
FLEIR RaHARR ©

DHMEERAEHEE®R RERZEER
MAFEHE2BRTEREERREFEER
DB R R

T \FEH DEAREERERAR



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IN=NERE e I

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # %2018 3 A31 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Other segment information
For the year ended 31 March 2018

ERARERETE
n% BERRERE
HENE B LRk

Allowance for doubtful debts recognised, net

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

For the year ended 31 March 2017

EEIREREIR
n% BERRERE
HENZ - B RRE N

Allowance for doubtful debts recognised, net

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

5 WakRSWBREE G

HttpEEH
BZ2018F3 A3 HIEE

Unallocated
KB
HK$'000
THER

Leasing Trading

i BE
HK$'000

HK$'000

&R TER
1,210

47,600

8,938

BZ2017F3A31HILEE

Leasing Trading Unallocated
e EE AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TATL TAR
168 = =
39,280 11 1,817
2,268 = =

Total
)
e
THER

1,210
49,708

Total
@t
HK$'000
TETL

168
41,108

2,268
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A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z2018F 3 A31 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)
Geographical information
The Group’s revenue from external customers is mainly derived
from customers located in Hong Kong and Macau, which is
determined based on the location of customers.

Bk aEEH (5

wIEFHE
AEERBIMIEFNEEERTEEE
BRRFINER - WEREFPAEHE

E °

2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FRT

External revenue: GhERU S
Hong Kong B 179,849
Macau P! 20,642
200,491

The Group’s non-current assets based on the geographical
location of the owners of these assets are as follows:

AEENFERBDEE (RUEEERBEM
IR EE D) BIIT

Non-current assets (Note)

FRBEE (M)
2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FHT
Hong Kong BE 190,200
Macau P 2,554
Singapore ETmIE 9
192,763

Note: Non-current assets excluded deposit placed for a life insurance
policy.

M IERDAETREBRREFNR -

—z_jgsm o oEAREzwapas 117
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A M ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # %2018 3 A31 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. KERSBEHH
(Continued)
Information about major customers FREEEFHEH
Revenue from customer during the year contributing over 10% REEEAEBEBIZE 10% HE P =
of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: HAWT :
2018 2017
2018 5§ 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Customer A EFEA N/A (Note)
TER (M) 25,606
Note: The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the Bt E : AERAU S I A AR SR B AR W s B B 10% ©
total revenue of the Group.
6. OTHER INCOME 6. RftilgA
2018 2017
2018 5§ 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAxT
Interest income from: FEWAKE :
— bank deposits — RITIER 438
— investment in bonds and — BEFRGERRERE
certificate of deposit 42
— deposit placed for a life — SERREFR
insurance policy 93
Storage income BHEIA 1,555
Sundry income HMIEU A 2,640
4,768
7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. Rfttlr@ kiR
2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Allowance for doubtful debts EHERRREH TR
recognised, net (1,210) (168)
Exchange loss, net [E 5 i85 5 (579) (144)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE  RE MR EBEKE
plant and equipment 8,942 2,268
7,153 1,956

1 1 8 AP Rentals Holdings Limited . Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # %2018 3 A31 HILFE

MEAF

8. FINANCE COSTS 8.
Interest on borrowings B E
Interest on finance leases BMERER S
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9.
Current tax &R IR
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMEH

Macau Complementary Income Tax  RPFIFFS# 7

FRriSIRBASL

2018
2018
HK$’000
FER

1,035
1

2018

2018 F
HK$’000

Under(over)provision in prior years BEFEREETE (BRERE)

Deferred taxation (note 23) RIETIIE (M sE23)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for both years. No provision for taxation in
Hong Kong had been made in prior year as the Group had no
assessable profits in Hong Kong.

TERT

2017
2017 4F
HK$’000
FHET

2,350
8

2,358

2017
2017 4F
HK$’000
FHET

1,232

1,232

31

2,049

3,312

BB MG R IR %M EFE A G ERP R
M16.5%:tH - ARAKERNBEFEY
BEREBABNERVER  BARBAEER

BMEHBE -

—T—)\FFR
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/T\

BB M

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & Z= 201843 A31 HILFE

9.

1 20 AP Rentals Holdings Limited o

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) o.

For the subsidiary registered in Macau, Macau Complementary
Income Tax is calculated at 12% of the estimated assessable
profit exceeding MOPB600,000 after the deduction of dividend
paid for both years. During the years ended 31 March 2017 and
2018, no dividend was paid by the subsidiary registered in

Macau.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled from the

profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

RS RBAX (&)

RRNRMEMOMB AR S  BFIATE
18 78 7 4% #8 38 600,000 8 P9 7T 1) 14 51 FE 22
Fa A (MBRmEFEENREE)/12%
& o B E20174 &2018563 A31H Ik
FE - ORI A B A B I &R AR

B o

o

AEERERAX B Ea R EME
a2 R BV ER B AR A SRR AN T

2018 2017
2018 5 2017 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before tax PR T Al 15,283
Tax at applicable tax rate of 16.5% 1216.5% @A X E/BIE 2,622
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR AT ISR 2
for tax purpose 1,156
Tax effect of income not taxable BARBIMANR G2
for tax purpose (32)
Under provision in prior years BAEFERETR 31
Effect of different tax rate of subsidiary REMEEERSENHTEAR
operating in other jurisdiction TRABERHTE (389)
Others HAh, 24
Income tax expense for the year NEFEFHAX 3,312

Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &£ 201843 A31 HIFF/E

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

10. FFEERF

2018 2017
2018 2017 £F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#&T FHETT
Profit for the year has been arrived R TIIEE BRANFEERF
at after charging:
Auditor’s remuneration ZEREM BN & 1,521
Cost of inventories recognised WRIER T MFEERA
as expenses 9,659
Depreciation of property, plant YE - REMRETE
and equipment 41,108
Directors’ emoluments (note 11) BEME (HeE11) 6,428
Other staff costs: Hi 8 TRA :
— Salaries, allowances and — e EMREMER
other benefits 44,261
— Retirement benefits scheme — RUNEFIFT IR
contributions 1,788
46,049
Total staff costs 48 8 TR 52,477
Operating lease rentals in respect HERMKEHERS
of rented premises 3,646

Note:

The Group has established a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) for its Hong Kong employees. The assets of the
scheme are held separately in funds which are under the control of
independent trustees. The retirement benefit scheme contributions
charged to profit or loss represent contributions paid or payable by the
Group to the scheme at 5% of each of the employees’ monthly relevant
income capped at HK$30,000 per month.

The total costs recognised in profit or loss for the year of HK$2,148,000
(2017: HK$1,860,000), comprised HK$72,000 and HK$2,076,000
(2017: HK$72,000 and HK$1,788,000) in directors’ emoluments and
other staff costs respectively, and represented contributions paid or
payable to the schemes by the Group in respect of the current
accounting period. At the end of the reporting period, there were no
forfeited contributions available to reduce future obligations.

BT -

FAEEDRBERREERIBHIEAERAHE (57
EeFtall) - ZEENBEENBLETEAEEN
EeWADFRA - RMERHIRARAREFE 2
HAR/AEEREEE AT AB30,0008 TR L
R H) A B AL % B S 5 a T 8RO AR -

NEFERBz P HERNBK A A2,148,000% 7T
(20174 : 1,860,000 8 7T) * BREEME K E
ftb B T B 7 5 B1172,0005% 7T 52,076,000 T
(2017 £ :72,0007% 7T ) 1,788,000/8 70 ) * &
RAEERE AT ST M SR8
oo HERE R - WAL H KA HERER
REFREAE ©

ZE)\FFER o TEAHERERERAAF
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A M ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # %2018 3 A31 HILFE

11.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 11.
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the directors of the
Company are as follows:

ENKENARREZOMEFELT

Other emoluments

Hitt &

Basic
salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other Discretionary scheme
benefits bonus contributions

EXFE -
RERHEAM
we A BIBTEAL HE JE #st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT BT FHEIT FHT

RAKER

HZ2018%53H31R

For the year ended

31 March 2018 LEE
Executive directors: HITES
Lau Pong Sing 2IFBAK
Chan Kit Mui, Lina BR21E
Non-executive directors: FEMTEE
Kitagawa Ken (resigned on 31142 (72017 F
20 June 2017) 6 20 HEfT)
Lu Tao (appointed on BE (2017 F
20 June 2017) 6 A20 HEZT)
Independent non-executive BUFNTES :
directors:
Li Ping Chi FRE
Siu Chak Yu BmEF
Ho Chung Tai, Raymond &R

For the year ended HZE201753AH31R
31 March 2017 LEE
Executive directors: HITES -
Lau Pong Sing 21365, - 2,651 36 2,687
Chan Kit Mui, Lina BRR1E - 2,625 36 2,661
Non-executive director: IEHITES :
Kitagawa Ken it - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFRPTES :
directors:
Li Ping Chi FRE 240 - - 240
Siu Chak Yu BEET 240 - - 240
Ho Chung Tai, Raymond [BFE3 600 - - 600
1,080 5,276 72 6,428

1 22 AP Rentals Holdings Limited .
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &£ 201843 A31 HIFF/E

Note: The discretionary bonus is mainly determined on the basis of the
Group’s and individual performance.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group. The non-executive
director and independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were mainly for their services as directors of the
Company.

Mr. Lau Pong Sing is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, each of Mr. Lau Pong
Sing and Ms. Chan Kit Mui, Lina agreed to waive his/her
unused annual leave entitlement, amounting to approximately
HK$292,000 and HK$239,000, respectively. No other directors
waived any emoluments during both years.

s MBTEAZRUARAEEEERBEARER
EMETE °

FAATEEHE T ZEEREERRR]
RAKEEHRERE AR - LA IFNTT
EEPBUFNTETHE TR EAE
EARRRESREREER -

FHKEENMBARRZFTHAR » £
X BEEMEBREEERERRBITHAR
RERBHMSE -

HZE2017F3A31 BILFE » BIFKEE
KRB L TS ARENEZEEARDAFR
RER - 5 BIMEE %) 292,000% 7T & 239,000
EIL c REZMEFE  BEEMmEENRE
FABE -

T \FEH DEAREERERAR



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A M ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # £ 2018F 3 A31 HIEF/E

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 1. EXF BEETRARBREE#MS
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#)
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group RERAEBAEZZSHALTHMA(2017
for the year, two (2017: two) of them were directors of the FMEB)RARAES AMSETA L
Company, whose emoluments are included in above. The XA e BT =4(2017F : =8) AR

emoluments of the remaining three (2017: three) individuals 2HT

were as follows:

2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FAT
Basic salaries and allowance and BEARF & KR R HE MR
other benefits 2,117
Discretionary bonus BIBIEAT 272
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R k1@ Fll 5+ &4 2k 54
2,443
The number of the highest paid employees who are not the e N T IESEENIERATESZS I
directors of the Company whose remuneration within the EEHBEWT :
following band is as follows:
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AH
HK$nil to HK$1,000,000 T ITE 1,000,000 7T 3
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors of the PREFE  AEEBTERAQARESK
Company or the five highest paid individuals (including directors FEERF AT (BEESERES) X
and employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the & {E 4 N BB 7 58 (] o N B BRF A 22 ) o B Bk

Group or as compensation for loss of office during both years. ffE -

1 24 AP Rentals Holdings Limited o Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z2018F 3 A31 HILFE

12. DIVIDEND 12. KR

2018 2017
2018 2017 £F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Dividend recognised as distributions IR EHERBIEAR R RIRAF EH 5K
of the Company during the year

2017 Final — HK cent 0.28 2017 FHH—FP%0.28 781l
(2017: 2016 Final — nil) per share (2017 4F : 2016 FF 42— /&) _
2018 Interim — HK cent 0.68 2018 FH Hi— A% 0.68 Il
(2017: 2017 Interim — (2017 4F : 2017 FF /R Hf —
HK cent 0.28) per share 0.28781ll) 2,419
2,419
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend RIBEEKRE - ARRESEREE 2018
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2018 of HK0.35 cent per FIAMALGFENARERERTRE A
ordinary share has been proposed by the directors of the AR 03578l - HEAFR RN EERRAE
Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the LHET AR -
forthcoming general meeting.
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. HERH
The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to RRBEEARIEFRERBNTHERT
owners of the Company is based on the following data: SIS -
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit for the year attributable to FERE & B EA BT
owners of the Company for the RATEEB AEIS
purpose of basic earnings per share AR 11,971

—= ngEy . oEpEERRERAT 125



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IN=NERE e I

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # £ 2018F 3 A31 HIEF/E

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 13.

Number of shares R EE

Weighted average number of ordinary A st & &A% E A F &Y
shares for the purpose of basic LR NAE 2
earnings per share

SEREHN ©

Number of shares
BHEAE
2017

2017
’000

ik

847,955

Notes:

i The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is
based on the profit attributable to owners of the Company using
the weighted average number of shares of in issue during the
year.

No diluted earnings per share are presented for both years as
there were no potential ordinary shares in issue.

1 26 AP Rentals Holdings Limited o Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # %2018 3 A31 HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

COST

At 1 March 2016
Additions
Disposals

B
201635 1R

At 31 March 2017
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2018

120183 A31H

DEPRECIATION

At 1 March 2016
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposals

e
120163 A 18
FERE

& R

At 31 March 2017
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposals

201763831 R
FERRE
HERTH

14. V%  BEREME

Furniture

Office
equipment

Plant and
machinery

Motor
vehicles

Leasehold
improvements
e
NERE
HK$'000

THL

and

fixtures Tools Total

BEAR
EELE
HK$'000

TAL

TR R
HK$'000

FAT

BOERME
HK$'000

FAT

nE
HK$'000

THL

I&
HK$'000

THL

-
HK$'000

AL

232,425 2,060 65 5,057 11,335 1398 252,540
66,207 057 - 319 1458 74 6833
(6,444) (40) (6,484)

292,208
76,417

314,391

(44,309)

324,316

73,105 959 1 2,426 5,554 629 82,734
37,253 381 1 990 2,053 230 41,108
(2,183 - - - (31) - (2,214)

108,175
45,720
(19,665)

121,628

At 31 March 2018 201853 A31R 134,230

CARRYING VALUES ~ BREfE

At 31 March 2018 R201853431R 190,086

At 31 March 2017 R201743A31R 184,033 1177 3 1,960 4,977 613 192,763
As at 31 March 2017, motor vehicles of the Group amounting MNO017TESABI B &K &£ % %\ A

to HK$230,000 were held under finance leases. No property,
plant and equipment were held under finance lease as at 31

March 2018.

230,000 TR AEEMEMAERHF - ©
20184 3 A31H * MEME - WE K&E
RREHERS -

ZE)\FFER o TEAHERERERAAF
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IN=NERE e I

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # £ 2018F 3 A31 HIEF/E

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)  14.

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:
Plant and machinery 15% to 30%
Others 20%

15. DEPOSIT PLACED FOR A LIFE INSURANCE 15.
POLICY

Deposit placed for a life insurance policy SRR EFHN

WX - BB REE ()
L - B REEEERTIEEL
RAEBEIE :

R 55 R Ak 15% & 30%
i 20%
SERREER

2018 2017
2018 2017 £
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

2,565

The Group entered into a life insurance policy (the “Policy”) with
an insurance company to insure a director of the Company.
Under the Policy, the beneficiary and policy holder is a
subsidiary of the Company and the total insured sum is
US$1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,757,000).

1 28 AP Rentals Holdings Limited o Annual Report 2018

REBERRBR AR BEREE(RE]) -
BEART—RERRR RERE  ZHF
ARREFBEAEBARRWB LR MR
# 1% %8 /&1,000,000% jT( 8 &5 B 4
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &£ 201843 A31 HIFF/E

At inception of the Policy, the Group is required to make a
single upfront payment of US$322,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$2,497,000) which includes a fixed policy
premium charge and a deposit. Monthly policy expense and
insurance charges will be incurred over the insurance period
with reference to the terms set out in the Policy. The insurance
company will pay the Group a guaranteed interest rate of 4.2%
for the first year and a variable return per annum afterwards
(with guaranteed minimum interest rate of 2%) during the
effective period of the Policy. The policy premium, expense and
insurance charges are recognised in profit or loss over the
expected life of the Policy and the deposit placed is carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. The Group
may request full surrender of the Policy at any time and receive
cash back based on the value of the Policy at the date of
withdrawal, which is determined by the gross premium paid
plus accumulated interest earned and minus the policy expense
and insurance premium charge. If such withdrawal is made
between the first to eighteenth policy year, a pre-determined
specified surrender charge will be imposed on the Group.

The directors of the Company consider that the possibility of
terminating the Policy between the first to eighteen year was
low and the expected life of the life insurance policy remains
unchanged since its initial recognition.

Finished goods UK

RAZRER  AEBAXN—ZEBRAN
322,000 JT( 8 % R £72,497,000%
L) BREBERERTFR - BARBAX
RRrBFEEENRRBANSRREME
RREL - RRABBHAARENEF
REME42% @ WRERREEZHARE
FEXNAEDR(RERBFNER2%) - R
E AXKRERFEENRENAAEX
HIARBRER - PN FFR A EBRA
FORRM IR AT BR o AN 5% [B A] BE RS B3R
2HER  WREAFRERERAREE
BUREMNREEBE RGBSR
RERAXMREFEEMET) WHRL -
RE-EF+N\EREFE2HER &K
SEBAHNEERRTEE -

ARAEEBR/RF—EF T N\EAREF
BEAZIERENARIEE  HBRREN
AR E ERERRERFTE -

2017
2017 4
HK$’000
FHET

12,5683

T \FEH DEAREERERAR



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A M ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # £ 2018F 3 A31 HIEF/E

1 30 AP Rentals Holdings Limited o

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 17. BHERRE - ReRAMTRIEA

PREPAYMENTS

2018 2017

2018 2017 4

HK$’000 HK$’'000

TET FH&T

Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE 65,395

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W REREAE (4,368)

61,027

Deposits and prepayments Be RIENRIE 2,513

63,540

The Group allows an average credit period of 0 to 45 days to its
trade customers. Before accepting any new customer, the
Group makes enquiries to assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits
attributed to customers are reviewed annually. Trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are due from
creditworthy customers.

As at 31 March 2018, Included in trade receivables are
HK$119,000 (2017: HK$256,000), HK$2,320,000 (2017:
HK$1,334,000) and HK$790,000 (2017: nil) receivables from a
shareholder, a subsidiary of a shareholder of the Company and
a related company respectively.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, net of
allowance, presented based on the invoice date at the end of
the reporting period:

AEERTHESEFPNTHEREHNRO
E45H  REMREAHEFFA - AEEIE
HEAAFREEEFPNEEER Uik
EPFREGERE - EFRHEREEFY
SEH - REAMIBENE S EKKIEY
KB ERARENES -

R2018F3 A31H B ERKFIBEBRIEE
WARNR]—BRE - —BREHKBAR
N — &R [ 5 IE L5 AI49119,000 %
7L (2017 £ : 256,000 7T ) * 2,320,000
7L (2017 4F : 1,334,000 7T) & 790,000 78
(20174 : &) »

TREINE ZEUFR(NREE) R#E
HIRIZBE A2 SRR DT

2018 2017

2018 20174

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Within 30 days 30HA 16,114
31 to 60 days 31260H 18,962
61 to 90 days 61290H 7,349
91 to 180 days 912180 H 8,879
Over 180 days 180 H 9,723
61,027

Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & Z=20184 3 A31 HILFE

17. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

As at 31 March 2018, included in the Group’s trade receivables
balances were debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$52,571,000 (2017: HK$51,271,000) which were past due
at the end of the reporting period for which the Group has not
provided for allowance for doubtful debts. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no further provision is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

17.

HOABKRE HeRFMRER

(4=
\(R8)

R20184E3 A31 H + AEBWE 5 B
BB IR 4 E A52,571,000% 7T
(2017 4F : 51,271,000 7T ) H) & Uk B
ZEFERREHAREBH - AEEW
BRI RIREE - BEBEBELR K
REEERABEARUZERIEE—TH
H RARGEEEXRWESEAEE M
DR AR 2 HUKE o 485 B30 Bt
LEBFEEAERR -

EAMERRER S ERFIRNIRE -

impaired:
2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Overdue: B8 -
1 to 60 days 1260H 27,768
61 to 90 days 61290H 5,863
91 to 120 days 91 £120H 2,757
121 to 180 days 1212180 H 5,984
181 to 365 days 1812 365H 6,895
Over 365 days i@ 365 H 2,004
51,271
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts were as follows: RIRBBEEHMNT -
2018 2017
2018 5§ 20174
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
At beginning of the year REX] 4,767
Amounts written off as uncollectible i85 T AT Uk 81 k08 (567)
Impairment loss recognised, net EERRBEBERFE 168
At end of the year WRER 4,368

2 )\FFER e
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A M ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # £ 2018F 3 A31 HIEF/E

18.

19.

1 32 AP Rentals Holdings Limited o

INVESTMENT IN CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT

As at 31 March 2017, the Group’s held-to-maturity investment
represented certificate of deposit which carried fixed interest at
0.86% per annum on annual basis and matured on 8 May
2017. The proceeds of this investment were received during the
year ended 31 March 2018.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK DEPOSIT
WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY OVER THREE
MONTHS/BANK DEPOSITS WITH ORIGINAL
MATURITY LESS THAN THREE MONTHS/
BANK BALANCES AND CASH

At 31 March 2018, there is no (2017: HK$10,038,000) bank
deposit with original maturity over three months. As at 31 March
2017, the bank deposit with original maturity over three months
carried fixed interest at 0.9% per annum.

At 31 March 2018, the bank deposits with original maturity less
than three months carry fixed interest ranging 0.79% to 1.00%

per annum (2017: nil).

At 31 March 2018, pledged bank deposit carries fixed interest
at 0.01% per annum (2017: 0.1% per annum).

Annual Report 2018

18.

19.

EREERSE
R2017F3 A31H  AEEMBFEIHEK
BEHAETEFFE086%IEFFTEILR
2017F5 A8 HE MM FRURE - ZIRE
RFTERIEEREZE2018F3 A31 B ILF
FEURER o

BESRTER RIPABE=
ERMBRITHER RIBEE=E
RLAMBITER RITHBERR
&

MR2018F3 A31H WEFREIHABE=
& B & 48 17 17 2 (2017 £F : 10,038,000 76
JT) ° 201743 F31 8 REIHEBEBA
= {8 AMIRITEFIREE FFI2L0.9%5T 2. °

K201843 431 H - REHBR A=A
MY ERITF FIZ N F0.79% £ 1.00% &) [
EFRE (20175 : )8 -

R2018F 3 A31 8 - EHEMBITEHIZE
EFEMZE0.01% (2017 F - FHE0.1%) &t
B o



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 #Z2018F 3 A31 HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. ¥ 5B H it RIE
2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHEIT
Trade payables B 5N FR0E 21,208
Accrued expenses 2 8,065
Other payables H b e (3B 5,898
Deposits received B lize 9,165
44,336
As at 31 March 2018, included in trade payables is R2018F3 A31 H  EHENZKIABBIEERN
HK$14,652,000 (2017: HK$18,889,000) payable to a subsidiary RN B — % IR ER BB & A B3R 14,652,000
of a shareholder of the Company. 77T (2017 £ : 18,889,000 7T) ©
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented TREHBGEMNTBEBRRERRIZEEZH
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: HAZ2 MR DT -
2018 2017
2018 2017 £
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&xT FHET
Within 30 days 308 4,900
31 to 60 days 31260H 7,426
61 to 90 days 61ZE90H 3,955
91 to 180 days 91E180H 3,629
Over 180 days HiB180H 1,298
21,208
The credit period on trade payables is ranging from O to 180 E S EMNFIENEESRNT0E180H (2017
days (2017: 0 to 180 days). F:0E180H) T -

—T \FEH . oEAERERRERAT 139



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # £ 2018F 3 A31 HIEF/E

21. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 21. MEHEREE
Present value of
Minimum lease minimum lease
payments payments
BREAERNR BREEEAREE
2018 2017 2018 2017
2018 F 2017 & 2018 2017 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET FHET
Within one year —FR 46 45
Less: Future finance charges 3 : RKRLE & F () -
Present value of lease HEEMTRE
obligations 45 45
Amount due for settlement —F R BREERE
within one year (shown under (RREIBEE ~271)
current liabilities) 45

As at 31 March 2017, the Group leases certain of its motor
vehicles under finance leases. The original lease term entered
into by the Group for the leases were all ranged from 1 to 2
years. Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance
leases were fixed at respective contract dates at 2.3% per
annum.

There is no outstanding finance lease as at 31 March 2018.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases were secured by
the lessors’ charge over the leased assets as at 31 March 2017
and released during 2018.

1 34 AP Rentals Holdings Limited o Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # %2018 3 A31 HILFE

22. BORROWINGS 22, fE®
2018 2017
2018 2017 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Secured borrowings BB EK 17,974 33,802
Unsecured borrowings R E 2,106 -

20,080 33,802

2018 2017
2018 £ 2017 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT FAT

Carrying amounts of borrowings that do 3 #7832 B8 U ZA

not contain a repayable on demand RERMEETETER
clause and are repayable based on HHE M ERMEREE ¢

the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements:

Within one year —FR 44
More than one year but not exceeding ZR—F  BETNERWE
two years -
44
Carrying amounts of borrowings that B8 B BE FUG R E R
contain a repayable on demand clause ~ (AnREEEET 25 WEEE
(shown under current liabilities) and MIZE R R TaTEER A
the maturity analysis based on the Fr{ERIEE DT A&
scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements are:
Within one year —FR 16,349
More than one year but not SZR—F  BRZRME
exceeding two years 10,080
More than two years but not LZHRME  BRZRAF
exceeding five years 7,329
17,974 33,758
20,080 33,802
Less: Amounts due within one year B RARBAERE NN —FR
shown under current liabilities 2 HAZIE (19,439) (83,802)

Amounts shown under RIERBERFEE TNE25IHFIA
non-current liabilities

—T \FEH . oEAERERRERAT 13D



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A M ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  #Z2018F 3 A31 HILFE

22,

23.

1 36 AP Rentals Holdings Limited .

BORROWINGS (Continued)

The fixed-rate and variable-rate borrowings at 31 March 2018
carry interest ranging from 1.92% to 2.85% per annum (2017:
1.98% to 4.00% per annum).

The secured borrowing were secured by property, plant and
equipment, deposit placed for a life insurance policy and
investment in certificate of deposit as disclosed in note 31.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised by the Group in respect of accelerated tax
depreciation and movements thereon during both years:

22,

23.

B E

MN2018%E3 A31 8 » BEFEME K ZBF|=
BRIEFENTF1.92% ZF 2.85% (2017 4F -
HFE1.98% F 4.00%) FIR:T & -

BEBETAN TSI FTRBEDE  BER
R BRAREGEFARFHREEREE
B -

BERRAR

VAR 7% 7N 65 B 52 R I8 5 J2 PO Bt D3R A TR 47
ERANIEELHEEE(EE) REE
&) :

Accelerated

depreciation

PR BLIE T
HK$’000
THET

At 1 April 2016
Charge (credit) to profit or loss

R20164F4 A1H
BEmNR GTAER)

At 31 March 2017
Charge to profit or loss

MR2017F3 A 31 H
EESEREiICS

At 31 March 2018 7201843 A31H

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had unused tax loss of
HK$11,588,000 available for offset against future profits and a
deferred tax asset had been recognised in respect of such loss.
The tax loss may be carried forward indefinitely. As at 31 March
2018, the Group does not have unused tax loss.

Annual Report 2018

20,384 =
3,961

tax
Total
#at
HK$’000
FET

Tax loss
RIEER
HK$’000

FAT

20,384
(1,912 2,049
(1,912)
1,912

R2017F3A31 A AEEEREARE
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &£ 201843 A31 HIFF/E

Ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each

Authorised:
At 1 April 2016, 31 March 2017
and 31 March 2018

At 1 April 2016

Issue of shares upon
capitalisation (Note i)

Issue of shares pursuant to the
initial public offering (Note ii)

At 31 March 2017
and 31 March 2018

Notes:

FAREE0.001 B TTH) & BAX

JRTE

MR20164%F4 A1H 2017 F
3HA31BKk201843 A31H

K2016F4 A1 H

B BT TR (MDD

REBEERAREBEEETIRO (BT

M®2017%F3A31H
& 201843 A31H

On 8 April 2016, 685,422,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each
were issued at par to the shareholders whose names were on
the register of members of the Company as at the close of
business on 17 March 2016 for capitalisation of HK$686,000
standing to the credit of the share premium account of the

Company.

ii. On 8 April 2016, 151,200,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each
were issued at a price of HK$0.75 by way of initial public offering.
On the same date, the Company’s shares were listed on the

Stock Exchange.

Number of Share
shares capital
RGHE [
HK$’000

FET

10,000,000,000 10,000
27,378,000 27
685,422,000 6386
151,200,000 151
864,000,000 864

BiEE -

20164 4 A8H » 685,422,000 % & i
EfE0.001 Bt L ERIZEEET TR
2016 F3 A 17 H & ¥R A RIFH IR
ARIRR AR - #OUE AR R
(BRI IR £ 58686,000/8 TR LA A ©

i. 7201644 A8H - 151,200,000 & &
M H0.001 B TR B ABAE B B R AR E
EIR0.75B LT » AR - ARFBRMOR
3P BT
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AP Rentals Holdings Limited

The Group has adopted the share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution in writing passed by
all the shareholders in the extraordinary general meeting on 17
March 2016. The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive
scheme and is established to recognise and acknowledge the
contributions that eligible participants had made or may make
to the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board of Directors may at
its discretion grant options to eligible participants, including: (i)
any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group
or a company in which the Group holds an interest or a
subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); or (i) the trustee of any
trust the beneficiary of which or any discretionary trust the
discretionary objects of which include any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or
adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or (i) a
company beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

The exercise price for any share under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board of Directors
and notified to each grantee and shall be not less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant option, which must be a business day, (i)
an amount equivalent to the average closing price of the
Company’s share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant option and (jii) the
nominal value of the Company’s share on the date of grant. The
exercise price shall also be subject to certain adjustments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &£ 201843 A31 HIFF/E

Subject to certain restrictions contained in the Share Option
Scheme, an option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and the terms of grant
thereof at any time during the applicable option period, which is
not more than ten years from the date of grant of option.

Under the Share Option Scheme, there is no general
requirement on the minimum period for which an option must
be held or the performance targets which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised under the terms of the Share
Option Scheme. However, at the time of granting any option,
the Board of Directors may, on a case by case basis, make
such grant subject to such conditions, restrictions or limitations
including (without limitation) those in relation to the minimum
period of the options to be held and/or the performance targets
to be achieved as the Board of Directors may determine in its
absolute discretion.

From the date of the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and
up to 31 March 2018, no share option has been granted or
agreed to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.

KRBT BIMEE TRHRRT - AR
P R BR R BA R (BN PR B R L i Ak B
HIEET T ) B RBEBERET SER KB
B L BB AR e G R T T (R B AR o
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R RESRIRIR B IR —RIRE -
AW EFEARRBEABRERIZE
AERE LA EERE  RBTHARIK
- RHSRR (BFE(BTRN) ZEHE
EenRtaRNEEE AT BBRENRX
RHRE K RAEBHRR B ZEERE)

BB IR S 254 B B = 2018 £ 3 A 31
Al WEREBRETZREREER
o B AR o

T \FEH DEAREERERAR



- e S
=l L -

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A M ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # %2018 3 A31 HILFE

26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 26. F2FMBRARRF LTI
COMPANY AND RESERVES OF THE

COMPANY
2018 2017
2018 20174
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FH&T
Non-current Assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR HRE 146,223 146,223
Loan to a subsidiary BERT—HEHBAF 17,997 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries e S EENGIE 39,834 59,751
204,054 205,974
Current Assets REBEE
Prepayments BN RE 200
Amounts due from subsidiaries e Sy NGB 33,532
Loan to a subsidiary BRT—HEHBAR -
Bank deposit with original maturity REE B A =18 A AR ERITFR
less than three months =
Bank balances and cash RITHEB MRS 168
33,900
Current Liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAS — R B 2 B kI8 = 556
Other payables H i FUA 1,654 596
1,654 1,152
Net Current Assets REEEFHE 39,797 32,748
Net Assets EEFE 243,851 238,722
Capital and Reserves B #iE
Issued capital BT 864 864
Reserves HiE 242,987 237,858
Total Equity R 243,851 238,722
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # £ 20183 A31 HILFE

26. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITIONOFTHE 26. 2 AFIMERARR I LT IE
COMPANY AND RESERVES OF THE (#8)
COMPANY (Continued)

The followings are the movements of the Company’s reserves TERHFHEMEFERRRNEEED -

for both years:

Share Retained
premium profits Total
B2 R E RERF st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2016 201654 A1H 129,794 3,330 133,124
Profit and total comprehensive 74 &% 7| & 2

income for the year Wezksasa = 4,602 4,602
Dividend recognised RN IR E

as distribution (note 12) (KHizE12) = (2,419) (2,419
Issue of shares upon B AR BT BT TRY D

capitalisation (note 24(j)) (B3E240()) (686) - (686)
Issue of shares pursuant to BIEE R AR ERIT

the initial public offering R A7 (P £ 24(ii))

(note 24(ii) 113,249 - 118,249
Shares issue expenses IR EBEITHRX (10,012) - (10,012
At 31 March 2017 MR2017¥F3A31H 232,345 5138 237,858
Profit and total comprehensive ZANEE#H R 2 HE U 54258

income for the year - 13,423 13,423
Dividend recognised as R BN IKERE

distribution (note 12) (PzE12) - (8,294) (8,294)
At 31 March 2018 MK20184F 3 A31H 232,345 10,642 242,987

—z_ngem - oEpaazpapas 141



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A M ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & Z= 201843 A31 HILFE

27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. ARF¥REBEER

1 42 AP Rentals Holdings Limited o

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends and new share issues.

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

28.

AEEEREEANBRRNASENER
BAIFELE  RSERE(LERLER
R BRRRFMEAEE - FA - AE
B ERRE —ERSTE -

AEENEARBEERENASEEY
UARARBHEEARGER (BREEITR
AR ) °

ARBEEE R EARE - ERILR
MR- EEEEEAKAREELE
BEXARBENER REEFES A5H
BB B RBEITHRO P L EE
BARZRE -

&®MTR
a. SMIAMEH

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Financial assets SRMEE
Loans and receivables (including BERNERZE(BEERE M
cash and cash equivalents) REEEY) 120,950
Held-to-maturity investment BEEIDEIRE 6,047
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost b= ) N 60,908
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &£ 201843 A31 HIFF/E

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The major financial instruments of the Group include
deposit placed for a life insurance policy, trade receivables
and deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank deposit with
original maturity over three months, bank deposits with
original maturity less than three months, and bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables and
borrowings. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

Certain transactions of the Group are denominated in
currencies which are different from the functional
currencies of the group entities and therefore the Group is
exposed to foreign currency risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure if necessary.

The carrying amounts of the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities of
the Group at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

Assets EE

Japanese Yen (“JPY”) HE(TBE])
United States dollars (“US$”) Erx(ZEx))
Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARB(TARE])
Euro (“EUR”) BT (TBT])
Liabilities aE

JPY H

Us$ e

RMB AR

EUR BT

T \FFR

eREREEERRBE

FEENTZoRMIARERRRE
5 BHRWGAERES - 2HER
RITFR - REMABA=(EH MR
7% REBBE R=1E R ANR
TER UWRRITEHRRRES  B5
REMEMNRIBRER - Bt EESH
TREBNRREET SRR (B
R EMERR) - EERR MRS
BB - BB F R
BREHN T - EREEIERERI
ZRB - LWEREEMERETEE
R

miE AR

E¥E R

AEBETRIUEEERNIEE
BAMNNERHE - Rt ASEmEER
SN LR o AN SE B B A SN S
ER o 2R - B IR B EE R SMNE Rz
WHRE T EREBEINEAINEE

& o
A

RB|ER - REBEAINEHENE
BEERERAGEREENT

2017
2017 4
HK$’000
FAT

3,231
2,995

19

502
1,445

106
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

b.

1 44 AP Rentals Holdings Limited o

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the sensitivity of the Group to a
5% increase and decrease in HK$ against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates an increase in post-tax profit where the relevant
currencies strength 5% against HKS$. For a 5% weakening
of the relevant currencies strength 5% against HKS, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax
profit.

JPY against HK$ HERAET
RMB against HK$ ARBHET

EUR against HK$ BT R TT

28. &#MTH %)
b. &MEAMEEAERBKE &)
TBAE ()
HRE ST

TRFVAKEEH BT A RRINEE
R ET R TE5%H GURE © 5% &
NEMEEEREASREIE R
PR BRE LR - RIRE IR E S
PE & AT BE R B RO YA - BURE DTE
BERBREHRAREEINETER
E®IAR - WIAE KRB B)5%EE X
WHE - TXHNERBREBERLE
TEEYE K F T+ 5% BB 128 F T8
HEBE® LB TEETES% &
HHRRENBERASERROTE -

2018 2017
2018 & 2017 5
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
136

For the monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
US$, since HK$ is currently pegged to US$, the
management considers that the exchange rate fluctuation
is not significant. Accordingly, no foreign currency
sensitivity analysis is disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the US$.
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b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed rate borrowings, investment in certificate
of deposit, pledged bank deposits, bank deposit with
original maturity over three months and bank deposit with
original maturity less than three months. The management
will take appropriate measures to manage interest rate
exposure if interest rate fluctuates significantly. The
management considers the fair value interest rate risk to

the Group is insignificant.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to deposit placed for a life insurance policy,
bank balances and variable-rate borrowings due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of the banks’ respective HK$ Best
Lending Rate from the Group’s borrowings denominated

in HK$.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate hedging
contracts or any other interest rate related derivative
financial instruments. However, the management monitors
the Group’s related interest rate exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure when

the need arises.

No sensitivity analysis is presented as the interest rate risk

is limited as assessed by the management.

eHERTEERRBE(E)

miEERE ()

I E

AR B B E E A R E R FRUR
FRE - CEWRITER - REHA
BE=EANRTERALRIAS=
8 A AR BIERITIFR - BRI A FE
FEER WA RKERE - BIEE
EREUE S IEEE RN AR - B
BRRAEEN D FHENXRERI
EXe

AEBEES BBRREFR - RIT
RN BN EERBRNR SR
KRR - REZER ™SI EKE
AEENRS RN ERBREZEPRN
REBLGBTTAHEE RS RITAET
REEEFHEK -

ARE B AT AR X EHE K93k
EMEMENREENITESRT
B AT EREBREERAKERN
KRR XRNEFEREZRY
FE AR E @

BMEZJBREDIN - REREERE
HER AN ERBRAR o
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AP Rentals Holdings Limited

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The maximum exposure of the Group to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The Group is exposed to concentration of
credit risk as a substantial portion of its trade receivables
is generated from a limited number of customers. As at
31 March 2018, the top five customers of the Group
accounted for about 26% (2017: 28%) of its trade
receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group had delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews regularly the recoverable
amount of each individual trade receivable at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds and deposit placed for a life

insurance policy is limited because the counterparties are
banks and financial institution with good reputation.
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Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the operations of the Group, and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A M ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # %2018 3 A31 HILFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 28. @I A ®E
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. &MERBREEAREBE (&)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRAR (H)
Liquidity risk analysis TEENE L R

On demand

Weighted or less Total
average than 1t02 2to5 undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate 1 year years years cash flows  amounts

il BRERY EHES

FigHl% P E 1-2F 2-5&  BAER REE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000
% THT TER THT THET THET

31 March 2018 20183 A 31H
Non-derivative financial FirEcBERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables 25 R EENIE = 26,135
Borrowings B3 217 19,478

45,613
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2018 &£ 201843 A31 HIFF/E

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

28. @M IR (%)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. &MEAMREREEEREE(E)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) wREESER (&)
Liquidity risk analysis (Continued) B EZER ST ()
On demand
Weighted orless Total
average than 1102 2105 undscourted Carrying
interest rate 1 year years years  cash flows amounts
il DT R
TR N 12 5% BEEN RaEfE
% HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
% FAR TET FET FET TET
31 March 2017 2017E3A31H
Non-derivative financial FTtsHERE
liabilities
Trade and other payables 25 REMEN TR - 27,106 - - 27,106 27,106
Obligations under finance ~ BAREE(E
leases 2.30 46 - - 46 45
Borrowings EEA 2.50 33,803 - - 33,803 33,802
60,955 - - 60,955 60,953

The Group’s borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “On demand or less than one
year” time band in the above maturity analysis. At 31
March 2018, the carrying amounts of these borrowings
amounted to HK$17,974,000 (2017: HK$33,758,000).

EABE A DT [RE Rk D14
REAR R BERNEESEAKREX
B X R KB K R2018%F
AR WEEBXHNEEEA
17,974,00078 7T (2017 4 : 33,758,000
BIT) e

—z_jgam o oEpaszparas 149



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A M ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  #Z2018F 3 A31 HILFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 28. &@MIR(H

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. &MEAMREREEEREEE
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REBESRAR (H)

Liquidity risk analysis (Continued)

Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not believe that it is probable that the
counterparties will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe that

RBE T ARSI (B)

REBAEEMBMNE - EFHIE
RPHTPRAGETERFONERSR
SRENEFER - ERMEZFEIER
BER GRS IERER A MR RE

such borrowings will be repaid within five years after the
end of the reporting period in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements, details of which are set out in the table below:

HARERAFNER  BEFEINT
ER

Maturity Analysis — Borrowings subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayment dates
B AR — THARERERGIBRERATERBHNER

Total
undiscounted
cash
outflows
BEHARA
RESRH
HK$'000
FET

102
years

2to 5
years

Less than
one year

Carrying
amounts

PME
HK$'000
TR

1-25
HK$'000
FHT

2-5%
HK$'000
THT

SREE
HK$'000

THT

1 50 AP Rentals Holdings Limited .

31 March 2018 201843 A31H

31 March 2017 201743 A31H 17,344

10,583

7,463

35,390 33,758

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Annual Report 2018

Tl B R O B BN $R 5 B R EE
MM RGEHAMER - Bl L BRSE
TEeRBEIBNETANSES

EMITRANHLFEEHE

TREERSHARNIFEIRE
AREEBEARBBERSRONE
5 o

ARREEARINERE VBRI RS
HRATIENEREERERAGR
E{EEE N TEES -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # %2018 3 A31 HILFE

29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

At the end of the year, the Group had contracted for the
following future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

20, EEHEERIE

FREBZKHEA
RER  AEBRETAIHELLEHER]
BT 5 HARE fEm e R R SAEEE R

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 4F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Within one year —FR 2,231
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_ZERF(BHEEEWF) 780
Total yatt 3,011

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office premises and staff quarters.
Leases are negotiated for a period of one to five years (2017:
one to two years) and rentals are fixed at the time of entering
into the respective leases.

The Group as lessor

Income earned from leasing of machinery during the year is
HK$144,383,000 (2017: HK$143,121,000). Leases are
negotiated on a monthly basis.

At the end of the year, the Group had contracted with
customers for the following future minimum lease payments:

Within one year —FR

KEHENRAREEREETHAEY
¥REIBREMNNES -HBEHERR
—EZRF(017F : —EWF) mEER
RN ETHERER -

AEESHBEA

RAFEE HE#BMMRRKAR
144,383,000 7T (2017 4F : 143,121,000 7%
7T) - MEWRTEIRAE

RER AEBEFEFETONREKE
MERFNT -

2018 2017
2018 2017 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TR

917
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A M ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # £ 2018F 3 A31 HIEF/E

30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30. BEKIE
2018 2017
2018 5 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FAT
Capital expenditure in respect of TEFTH BB E - BB R&
acquisition of property, plant and BARRERE PSRRI IRE
equipment contracted but not MEARFAZ
provided for in the consolidated
financial statements 12,024
31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 31. EEHH
The following assets were pledged to banks as securities to RIREHRER FRITIEARNEBMER
secure the borrowings and facilities granted to the Group at the ERXRRERBEHNEENT

end of the reporting period:

2018 2017
2018 5§ 20174
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MR 32,991
Deposit placed for a life insurance policy ZEREFR 2,565
Investment in certificate of deposit FRRBIRE 6,047
Pledged bank deposits BIRBIRITIF 2,360
43,963
In addition, the Group’s obligations under finance leases at 31 AN - REBEPK2017F3 A31 HRgEM
March 2017 were secured by the lessor’s charge over the EFFULAANEERE RmERMKE
leased motor vehicles with carrying values as disclosed in note 14358 W EEA -
14.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  # %2018 3 A31 HILFE

32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 32. RS HE
During the year, the Group entered into the following RAFE  AEBHRETEEHAESIE
transactions with related parties in which some directors have wMREEE AR YIRS ¢

beneficial interests:

2017
017F

Related Related

companies companies

in which in which

Mr. Lau Mr. Lau

A subsidiary Pong Sing A subsidiary Pong Sing

ofa has beneficial ofa  has beneficial

A shareholder  shareholder [11G s A shareholder shareholder interest

ARHELE B sE

—ZRRN BEEEREL —ZRRE  HAEER

—ZRR WEAR WERB AR —ZRE HEAR ol

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THER TR THT THIL FET TAL

Hiring expenses EREY 36,293 - 47,063 -

Leasing income of machinery (KRB 1,675 - 247 116

Expenses recharge from BHERY 240 = 255 =

Expenses charged to [REill:5T B - 8 -
Acaquisition of property, WENE  BE

plant and equipment P& - 118 -

Sales of machinery BREHE - - 201

Purchases BE - 3,107 23

Sales of parts THEHE 1,769 113 30

Other service income Hi RSN = 1171 103

Other expenses HipfY 418 = =

Storage income BHRUA - 1,555 -

Transportation income BEHWA 2 314 -

—x gEw . oEPEERRERAT 103



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR A M ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018  #Z2018F 3 A31 HILFE

32.

33.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the unlimited personal
guarantee from a director of the Company was released and
replaced by the unlimited corporate guarantee by the Company.
As at 31 March 2018, the Group’s general banking facilities
amounting to HK$58,070,000 (2017: HK$62,822,000) are
secured by unlimited corporate guarantee from the Company.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the consolidated
statement of financial position and related notes.

The Company’s key management personnel are the directors
and their remunerations are included in the emoluments
disclosed in note 11.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

32. MBAHE B
RAR—RESHNERBEAAZRERE
Z201753 A1 HILFERHER - WHAR
AIFTEEMRE N A EMREK - R20184 3
A318 - N& HE & % /358,070,000 % 7T
(2017 4F : 62,822,000 7T) H)— AL ER 1T Ak
B RAD A R D AEREET o

R 7 AR AR A B ISR R R ARRA T A
R EE o

ARAMNEREREABREST  MEF
BV 5t A RS 11 FTARER B0 S

33. MEETHELEMARBIR

TRIBASBEEAREZDELNEEER
BFE ERRSMERSEH BEL
HELTNRBEREERSAEIRKEAS
MEEIMNAEEGARERERTD
BRRELRBMERERENARE -

Obligations

under

Dividend finance
Payable Borrowings leases Total

MEHE
R E B BfE st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TERx TER TER TER

At 1 April 2017 R2017E4A1H = 33,802 45 33,847

Financing cash flows BERERE (8,294) (14,757) (46) (23,097)

Non-cash transactions FHER S

— Finance costs — BERA - 1,035 1 1,036

— Dividend recognised as distribution — ERBDRKIKRE

At 31 March 2018 M201843 A31H 8,294 - - 8,294
- 20,080 - 20,080
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For the year ended 31 March 2018 &£ 201843 A31 HIFF/E

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2018

and 31 March 2017 were as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

WELREH

AP Rentals (BVI) Holdings
Limited

AP Rentals (BV) Holdings
Limited

AP Rentals Limited

DEAHERRAA

AP Equipment Leasing
and Engineering Limited

TRARKEERIR
BRAT

AP Equipment Rentals
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

AP Equipment Rentals
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Issued and fully

Place of paid ordinary
incorporation/  share capital/
registration/
operation registered capital
BRTRAR
ML/ LERE/
B/ BEhE R
British Virgin Us$2
Islands
RBENES 2%
Hong Kong HK$27,378,000
B 27,378,000 87T
Macau MOP25,000
g 25,000 2F 7T
Singapore SGD100,000
A% 100,005 103 7T

Equity interests attributable

to the Group
REAEERA
Directly Indirectly
EE Rk
2017 2017
2017F 20174
100% -
- 100%
- 100%
100% -

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the reporting period.

MR2018F3 A31 H 201793 A31H » K
NEMTBRARFBLT

Principal activities

IRER

Investment holding

Investment holding, trading
and leasing of machinery
and parts, and provision
of operating and other
related services

RERR  BERLBERR
T IRIREEE
REMARRERE

Leasing of construction machinery

uiifeE 22

Trading and leasing of machinery
and parts, provision of operating
and other related service

BERMERRRTS RE
e REMRRRS

REHR - BHENB AR BT EMER

kog

% o

=113
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR A M ISR M wE

For the year ended 31 March 2018 & Z= 201843 A31 HILFE

35. EVENT AFTER THE END OF THE REPORTING
PERIOD

On 23 May 2018, AP Rentals Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a Sale and Purchase
agreement with a company incorporated in Singapore which
supplies engine-driven generators, welders and air
compressors, for the acquisition of 36 units of Silent type diesel
generators at the total consideration of JPY246,305,455
(equivalent to approximately HK$17,495,076) to enable the
Group to expand its equipment fleet to satisfy the increasing
demand for equipment with higher emission standards following
the implementation of the NRMM Regulation.

1 56 AP Rentals Holdings Limited o Annual Report 2018

35.

BEMESER

M20184F5 238 + AARIMEEH B R
AIEEHEESHR AR E— RTINS
AL - FEEBRMIES| EEEH B -
IRER R ERBAERO AR EE R
Bt - 722 R 246,305,455 B B (A& 7K
#717,495,076 % 7T ) &) 48 X B U #E 36 48 7%
FHEBEER  WEEASEREASRE
A - AR IEBR B B R O E 18 -
mREREE SRR ER RS B RIE M
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